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WEYMOUTH TOWNSHIP
BOARD OF EDUCATION

1202 Eleventh Avenue
P.O. Box 231
Dorothy, New Jersey 08317

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Township of Weymouth School District
County of Atlantic

Dorothy, New Jersey

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Township of Weymouth School District
(District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both
the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the management of the Board of Education (Board). To the best of our
knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations
of the various funds. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of
the District's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections:

e The Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, the District's organizational chart
and a roster of officials.

e The Financial Section includes the Independent Auditors’ Report, Management’s Discussion
and Analysis, the Basic Financial Statements and Notes providing an overview of the
District’s financial position and operating results, and other schedules providing detailed
budgetary information.

e The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally
presented on a multi-year basis.

¢ The Single Audit Section in which the District is required to undergo an annual single audit in
conformity with provisions of the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulation part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and State of New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08,
"Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid".
Information related to this single audit, including the auditor's report on the internal control
structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and
recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report.



1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

The District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the Governmental
Standards Board (GASB). All funds of the District are included in this report. The Township of
Weymouth Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District’s reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K
through 8. These include regular, as well as special education for disabled youngsters. The
District completed the 2016-2017 fiscal year with an enroliment of 155 students. The following
charts the Average Daily Enroliment of the District over the past ten years.

Average Daily Enroliment

Fiscal Student

Year Enroliment
2016-2017 155
2015-2016 168
2014-2015 182
2013-2014 190
2012-2013 203
2011-2012 209
2010-2011 219
2009-2010 224
2008-2009 244
2007-2008 254

2) ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The District area is considered stable as to development and expansion.

3) MAIJOR INITIATIVES

Percent
Increase/(Decrease)

(7.70%)
(8.00%)
(4.21%)
(6.40%)
(2.87%)
(4.56%)
(2.23%)
(8.20%)
(3.94%)
7.18%

During the 2016-2017 school year, the following District initiatives took place:

e The District implemented Teacher’s College Readers and Writers Project Units of Study

for Writing in grades K, 3 and 4.

e The District implemented Teacher’s College Readers and Writers Project Units of Study

for Reading in grades 1 and 2.

e The district adopted and utilized new CCSS aligned materials in Math in grades k-5.
e The district departmentalized instruction for grades 1-4 in the following manner:

e ELA teacher for grades1&2 and grades 3&4

e Math, Science and Social Studies teacher for grades1&2 and grades 3&4




4) INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control
structure to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to
ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). The Internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and
(2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal awards and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring that adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This Internal control structure is also
subject to periodic evaluation by the District’s management.

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy
of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal awards and state
financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with
applicable laws and regulations.

5) BUDGETARY CONTROLS

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The
objectives of these budgetary controls are to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied
in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality. Annual
appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt
service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for
in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected
in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a
line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as
reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated
are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2017.

6) ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS

The District's accounting records reflect accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds. These funds are
explained in "Notes to the Financial Statements".

7) DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At June 30, 2017, the District’s outstanding debt issues included $1,514,000 in Bonds, and
$3.867 in Capital Leases.




8) CASH MANAGEMENT

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in "Notes
to the Financial Statements". The District has adopted a cash management plan which requires
it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect
Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New
Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories
located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

9) RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability,
automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and
contents, and fidelity bonds.

10) OTHER INFORMATION

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or registered
municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Preziosi Nicholson & Associates, PA was selected
by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also
was designed to meet the requirements of U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulation part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08,
"Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid". The auditor's
reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this
report.

11) ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Township of Weymouth
School Board for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of
the school district and thereby contributing their full support to the development and
maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this report could not have been
accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our administration and business
staff.

Respectfully submitted,

?ﬂ-..p‘. N

Patricia Palmieri
Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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PREZIOSI-NICHOLSON

& ASSOCIATES PA
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Township of Weymouth School District
County of Atlantic

Dorothy, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities and each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of Weymouth Board
of Education in the County of Atlantic, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States; and in compliance with audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
8



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Township of Weymouth School District in the County of Atlantic, State of New
Jersey as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information as listed in the table of contents be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Township of Weymouth School District's basic financial statements. The accompanying combining statements
and related major fund supporting statements and schedules and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulation Part 200, Uniform Administration Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the Schedule of State Financial
Assistance as required by NJ OMB 15-08 and the introductory and statistical sections are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying combining statements and related major fund supporting statements and schedules and
Schedules of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying combining statements and
related major fund supporting statements and schedules and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
State Financial Assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as
a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.




Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 17, 2017 on
our consideration of the Township of Weymouth School District's internal control over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Township of Weymouth School District’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

PREZIOSI - NICHOLSON & ASSOCIATES
Certified Public Accountants

(-AQ o> M@Z\’W

James M. Preziosi
Certified Public Accountant
Public School Accountant No. CS 01141

November 17, 2017
Millville, NJ
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TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

This section of the Township of Weymouth School District’s (the District) annual financial report presents our discussion
and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the year ended June 30, 2017. Please read it in conjunction
with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the District’s financial statements, which immediately follows this
section.

The Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary Information specified in
the Governmental Accounting Standard Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 34 - Basic Financial Statements-and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments. Certain comparative information is required
to be presented. :

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Key financial highlights for the year ended June 30, 2017 year include the following:

e Net Position (Exhibit A-1) for Governmental and Business-Type activities was $1,945,506 and $18,757 totaling
$1,964,263.

e Net Position (Exhibit A-2) for both activities increased by $180,160.

e The Fund Balance (Exhibit B-1) of the General Fund as of June 30, 2017 was $1,072,006, an increase of (Exhibit
B-2) $307,628 when compared with the beginning balance of $764,378.

e The District’s outstanding bonded debt at June 30, 2017 is $1,514,000.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of the annual report consists of four parts — management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the
basic financial statements, required supplemental information, an optional section that presents combining statements for
special revenue, capital projects, and fiduciary funds. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that
present different views of the District.

e The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and long-term
information about the District's overall financial status.

e The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the District, reporting the
District's operation in more detail than the government-wide statements.

a. The governmental funds statements tell how basic services such as regular and special education
were financed in short term as well as what remains for future spending.

b. Proprietary funds statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the
activities that the District operates like businesses.

c. Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the District
acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others to whom the resources belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide more
detailed data. Table A-1 summarizes the major features of the District’s financial statements, including the portion of the
District's activities they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of
management’s discussion and analysis highlights the structure and contents of each of the statements.




TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Table A-1 _ MAJOR FEATURES OF THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-Wide . s
Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds
Scope Entire District (except The activities of the Activities the District Instances in which the
Fiduciary funds) District that are not operates similar to District administers
proprietary or fiduciary, private businesses: resources on behalf of
such as regular and Food Service Fund, someone else, such as
special education, School Age Child Care scholarship programs
building maintenance and student activities
and transportation
Required Financial Statements of Net Balance Sheet Statement of Net Statement of Net
Statements Position Position Position
Statement of Activities Statement of Revenues, | Statement of Revenues, | Statement of Changes

Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund
Balances

Expenses, and Changes
in Net Position

Statement of Cash
Flows

in Net Position

Accounting Basis and

Accrual accounting and

Modified accrual

Accrual accounting and

Accrual accounting and

Measurement Focus economic resources accounting and current economic resources economic resources
focus financial focus focus focus
Type of Asset/Liability | All assets and liabilities, | Generally assets All assets and liabilities, | All assets and liabilities,

both financial and
capital, short-term and
long-term

expected to be used up
and liabilities that come
due during the year or
soon thereafter; no
capital assets or long-
term liabilities included

both financial and
capital, and short-term
and long-term

both short-term and
long-term

Type of inflow/outflow
information

All revenues and
expenses during year,
regardless of when cash
is received or paid

Revenues for which
cash is received during
or soon after the end of
the year; expenditures
when goods or services
have been received and
the related liability is due
and payable

All revenue and
expenses during the
year, regardless of when
cash is received or paid

All additions and
deductions during the
year, regardless of when
cash is received or paid

12




TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar to
those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the District's assets, deferred
outflows and inflows of resources and liabilities. All of the current year's revenue and expenses are accounted for in the
statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two govemnment-wide statements report the District's net position and how they have changed. Net position — the
District's assets and deferred outflows of resources, less deferred inflows of resources and liabilities — is a measure of the
District's financial health or position.

o Over a period of time, increases or decreases in the District's net position are an indicator of whether the
financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

» To assess the overall health of the District, additional non-financial factors such as changes in the District’'s
property tax base and the condition of school buildings and other facilities should be considered.

In the government-wide financial statements the District's activities are shown in two categories:

s Govemmental activities — Most of the District’s basic services are included here, such as regular and special
education, transportation, administration, and maintenance. Aid from the State of New Jersey and from the
Federal government along with local property taxes finances most of these activities.

e Business-type activities — The district charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of certain services it
provides. The District's Food Service Fund and After School Program Fund are included here.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's funds — focusing on the most
significant or “major” funds — not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of
specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs:

e Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.

« The District uses other funds, established in accordance with the State of New Jersey Uniform Chart of Accounts,
to control and manage money for particular purposes (e.g., repaying its long-term debts) or to show that it is
properly using certain revenues (e.g., federal grants).

The District has three kinds of funds:

« Governmental funds — Most of the District's basic services are included in govemmental funds, which generally
focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the
balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements
provide a detailed short-term view that helps to determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources
that can be spent in the near future to finance the District's programs. Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide additional information
at the bottom of the governmental funds statements that explain the relationship (or differences) between them.

o Proprietary funds — Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the government-wide statements.

« Fiduciary funds — The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others. The District is
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and by
those to whom the assets belong. All of the District's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of
fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities from the
government-wide financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance its operations.




TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE
Net Position

The Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources. The difference between the District's assets and
liabilities is its net position.

Summary of Net Position
Governmental Activities Business Activities
June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016
Current and Other Assets $ 1,118,517 $ 845,573 $ 22,750 $ 21,876
Capital Assets 3,212,952 3,360,849 12,875 14,868
Deferred Outfiows 247,445 95,825 -
Total Assets 4,578,914 4,302,247 35,625 36,744
Current Liabilities - 119,285 154,785 16,868 8,302
Long-Term Liabilities 2,434,330 2,295,893 -
Deferred Infiows 79,793 95,906 -
Total Liabilities 2,633,408 2,546,584 16,868 8,302
Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets 1,698,952 1,776,849 12,875 14,868
Restricted 1,078,528 747,765 -
Unrestricted (831,974) (768,954) 5,883 13,574
Total Net Position  § 1,945,506 $ 1,755,660 $ 18,757 $ 28,442

Summary of Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business Activities Total
June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016
Rewenues

Program Revenue
Charges for Senices $ 53,592 $ 68,797 $ 50,176 $ 49,394 $ 103,768 $ 118,191
Grants and Entitlements 1,501,597 1,551,096 60,429 67,491 1,562,026 1,618,587

General Revenues
Property Taxes 2,231,457 2,196,296 2,231,457 2,196,296
Grants and Entitiements 2,375,694 2,104,080 2,375,694 2,104,080
Other 33,059 6,377 45 47 33,104 6,424
Total Revenues 6,195,399 5,926,646 110,650 116,932 6,306,049 6,043,578

Expenses

Instruction 2,531,462 2,421,036 2,531,462 2,421,036
Support Senvices 3,204,559 2,918,378 3,204,559 2,918,378
Capital Outlay 2,013 2,012 2,013 2,012
Interest on Debt 48,227 50,293 48,227 50,293
Unallocated Depreciation 147,897 135,715 147,897 135,715
Charter School 71,395 67,472 71,395 67,472
Business-Type Activities 120,334 123,269 120,334 123,269
Transfers - -
Total Expenses 6,005,553 5,594,906 120,334 123,269 6,125,887 5,718,175

Change in Net Position  § 189,846 $ 331,740 $ (9,684) § (6,337) $ 180,162 $ 325,403




TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

The financial performance of the District as a whole is also reflected in the governmental funds which are accounted for by
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. As of the end of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds
reported combining ending fund balances of:

Fund Balances

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 Change
Restricted
Capital Reserve $ 401,535 $ 301,535 $ 100,000
Capital Projects 18,948 18,948 -
Maintenance Resene 155,000 155,000 -
Debt Senice 3 2 1
Excess Surplus 176,508 139,300 37,208
Assigned -
Subsequent Year Budget 19,634 4,076 15,558
Encumbrances 306,901 131,979 174,922
Unassigned -
General 6,057 25,661 (19,604)
Total § 1,084,586 $ 776,501 $ 308,085

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The District's budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting for certain transactions on a
basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The most significant budgeted fund is the General Fund.

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times. Revisions in the budget were
made to recognize revenues that were not anticipated and to prevent over-expenditures in specific line item accounts.

Revenues
Budget
Original Revised Actual
General Fund $ 4,573,448 $ 4,577,102 $ 4,619,542
On-Behalf Non-Budgeted
TPAF Pension Contribution 263,140
TPAF Social Security 86,836

$ 4,573,448 $ 4,577,102 $ 4,969,518

Expenditures

Budget
Original Revised Actual
General Fund $ 4,662,580 $ 4,818,230 $ 4,311,490
On-Behailf Non-Budgeted
TPAF Pension Contribution 263,140
TPAF Social Security 86,836

$ 4,662,580 $ 4,818,230 $ 4,661,466




TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2017 the District had $8,394,107 invested in land, building, and equipment. For more detailed information,
please refer to the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Governmental Activities Business Activities Total
June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016
Facilities and Improvements $ 8,170,710 $ 8,170,710 $ - $ - $ 8,170,710 $ 8,170,710
Equipment 184,216 184,216 39,181 39,181 223,397 223,397
$ 8,354,926 $ 8,354,926 $ 39,181 $ 39,181 $ 8,394,107 $ 8,394,107

Debt Administration

At the end of fiscal year 2017, the School District had $1,570,462 of outstanding debt. Of this amount, $52,595 is for
compensated absences, $3,867 is for capital leases, and $1,514,000 is for general obligation bonds. Additional
information on the District’s long-term obligations can be found in the notes the basic financial statements of this report.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a summary of the financial condition of the District. Questions concerning any
of the information provided in this report should be addressed to:

School Business Administrator/Board Secretary
Township of Weymouth School District

1202 Eleventh Avenue

Dorothy, NJ 08317

609.476.2412
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TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2017

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Inventory
Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Deferred Outflows

LIABILITIES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Grantor Advances
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year
Net Pension Liability

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Deferred Inflows

NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted For
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Other Purposes
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Exhibit A-1

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$1,039,23055 $ 14350.36 $ 1,053,580.91
79,286.91 2,804.55 82,091.46
5,695.23 5,5695.23
3,212,951.76 12,874.54 3,225,826.30
4,331,469.22 35,624.68 4,367,093.90
247,445.00 247,445.00
24,473.00 16,867.59 41,340.59
11,485.91 11,485.91
9,458.97 9,458.97
73,867.40 73,867.40
1,496,595.00 1,496,595.00
937,735.00 937,735.00
2,553,615.28 16,867.59 2,570,482.87
79,793.00 79,793.00
1,698,951.76 12,874.54 1,711,826.30
2.68 2.68
18,947.83 18,947.83
1,059,577.88 1,059,577.88
(831,974.21) 5,882.55 (826,091.66)
$1,94550594 § 18,757.09  § 1,964,263.03

17



€0C9TY96'L §  60.6.8L $  ¥6GOSGYEL § 0€ aunr ‘uoiisod 1aN
0€°'€0L ¥8L'1L S'evy 8e G8°099'GS5.'1 | Ainr ‘uonisod 1aN
€2.'651'081 (9£'689'6) 60°6v8'681 uonisod 1aN ui abueyp
LLYST VS 9y 6001270v9'% Sigjsuel] puy sanuaney |eioues [ejoL
80°029'62 80°029'62 awodu| 18yio
£2'E8Y'E 4R 474 19'8EY'E sBuiuses Juswysanu|
o' ¥69'62€'2 ovr'¥69's.LE'C piY [BD07 pUE 3)E)S ‘|elapad pajollsalun
00'6€£8'GL 00°'6€8'GZ 90IAI18S }ga(q 40} palAaT] saxe |
00819651 008196512 s8s0dind |eJauUSK) 10§ PBIAST SBXE ]
sexe)|
SaNUaAaYy |el1aua
(86'¥60'09V'%) (86'62.'6) (00'69€'05t'p) - $ Zr'Ge0eos’t $ 16°29.¢0L ¢ 16°,88'GZL'9 $ Juswiuianoo Aiewiid [ejol
(86'62.'6) (86'62.°6) - - 89'8Z¢'09 L9'GLL'0S LZ'vee ozl saliAoY adh | -ssauisng [ejoL
(86'62.'6) (86'62.6) - 89'82v'09 19'G2170G LZVEE0ZL spund asiidiajug
SaljIAOY 8dA | -ssauisng
(00°69€'05¥'¥) - (00°g9e’0st'v) - ¥.'965'10G'} 06166 €S ¥9'€65'600'9 SBIJIAIOY [BJUSLUIUIBA0D |ejo L
(82°268'LY1) (82°268'L¥1) 8CL68'LYL uopetosidag pajeooleun
(00€L0'2) (00°€10'2) 00'€4L0'2 Kepno jeyded
(zz'LzZ'8y) (zz'L2Z'8y) zzLze'sy 198Q uue | -6uo uo jsasajul
(00°56€'12) (00°s6€"1.2) 00'G6E'LL |ooyog Japey 0} ajsuel |
(60°65.'992) (60'65.'992) 06'L6S'€S 66°05€'02Z€ uonepodsuel] idnd
(Ly'991'10€) (Ly'991'10€) Ly'991'10€ @oueusjulely pue suoljesadQ jueld
(00°005'€) (00°005'¢) 00°00S'€ ABojouyoa uonewIou| sAlesIuIWLPY
(z1'85%'v6) (z1'85v'v6) ZL'85Y'v6 S90IAISS [BJUSD
(v1'e€¥'991) (r1'e€v'99L) LZ'¥96'68 \v'L66'LGT SAEJSILILUPY [00Y0S
(9vez'LiL) (Zovez'LiL) ¥9'¥52'29 9Z'6LY'6LL uoesSIUIWPY [eJausD
(29'161'9eY) (19'161'9EY) v8'v19'6.2 15'908'} 1L uoponysu| pue Judpnig
(59°008'1¥€"L) (59°008'LVE'L) $9'008'LYE'L uomny
- s$ao1M88 poddng
- |efoadg Jay10
- SaI)IAlOY palosuodg jooyos
(86'¥68'L02) (86'¥68'202) 50'088'001 £0'GLL'YLE uoeanp3 |epadg
(oLcov'svZ'L) $ - $ (oLcov'syz't) ¢ - $ €6'282'16 $ - $ 0,989'9lzZ'c ¢ Jejnbay
uononJisu|
SBINIAIOY [BJUBWIUIBA0D)
1eyo1 SaljIAOY SalIADY SUOIINQUIUCD pue  SUOlNQUUC) pue ERINES sasuadx3 sweiboldjuoioung
adA | -ssauisng |EJUSWILIBAOSD) sjuels) jeyde) sjuels) bunesadp 1o} sabieyd

sjessy JoN ul sabuey) pue snuaray (esuadx3) jaN

¢-viaiyx3a

senuaAey weibold
sjuswaje)g [eIduRY|4 Jiseg 8y 0} s8joN Bujluedwosay sag
L10Z ‘0€ aunp pepu3 Jeaj [edsid 8y) 104
SOl}IAIOY jO Juswaje)s
10141S1d TOOHOS HLNOWAIM 40 dIHSNMOL




FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS




Exhibit B-1
TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2017

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

General Special Capital Debt Service
Fund Revenue Fund Projects Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,019,280.04 $ - $ 19,947.83 $ 268  $1,039,230.55
Accounts Receivable
Due From Other Funds 62,118.88 62,118.88
Transportation Fees 7,192.60 7,192.60
Due From Other Governments 7,887.86 57,456.45 65,344.31
Total Assets $ 1,096,479.38 $ 57,456.45 $ 19,947.83 $ 268 $1,173,886.34
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 2447300 $ - $ - $ - $ 24,473.00
Grantor Advance 9,458.97 9,458.97
Due to Other Funds 54,368.88 1,000.00 55,368.88
Total Liabilities 24,473.00 63,827.85 1,000.00 - 89,300.85
FUNDS BALANCES
Restricted
Capital Reserve 401,535.27 401,5635.27
Maintenance Reserve 155,000.00 155,000.00
Excess Surplus 176,508.09 176,508.09
Capital Projects 18,947.83 18,947.83
Debt Service Fund 2.68 2.68
Assigned
Other Purposes 306,900.61 306,900.61
Subsequent Year 19,633.91 19,633.91
Unassigned 12,428.50 (6,371.40) 6,057.10
Total Fund Balance 1,072,006.38 (6,371.40) 18,947.83 2.68 1,084,585.49

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $1,096479.38 $ 5745645 § 1994783 _§ 268 $1,173,886.34




TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2017

Total Governmental Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement
of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported as assets in governmental
funds and consist of:

Cost of Capital Assets
Accumulated Depreciation

Deferred Outflows related to pension contributions subsequent
to the Net Position Liability measurement date and other deferred
items are not current financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the fund statements

Deferred Inflows related to pension actuarial gains from
experience and differences in actual return and assumed returns
and other deferred items are not reported as liabilities in the
fund statements

Long-term liabilities, including Net Pension Liability, are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported
as liabilities in the fund statements

Long-Term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as
liabilities in the funds. Long-Term liabilities consist of:

Accrued Interest

Bond Payable

Compensated Absences Payable
Lease Obligations

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

Exhibit B-1

$ 1,084,585.49

8,354,925.79

(5.141,974.03)

247,445.00

(79,793.00)

(937,735.00)

(11,485.91)
(1,514,000.00)
(52,595.00)

(3.867.40)

$ 1,945,505.94




Exhibit B-2

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

REVENUES
Local Sources
Local Tax Levy
Transportation
Tuition
Interest Eamed
Miscellaneous

Federal Sources
State Sources
Local Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current
Regular Instruction
Special Education Instruction
School Sponsored Activities
Other Instruction

Support Services
Tuition
Student and Instruction
General Administration
School Administrative
Central Services
Administrative Information Technology
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Employee Benefits

Transfer to Charter School

Debt Service
Principal
Interest

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In/(Out)
Capital Leases (non-budgeted)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Changes in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

General Special Capital Debt Service
Fund Revenue Fund Projects Fund Fund Total
$2,155,618.00 § - $ - $ 75839.00 $2231,457.00
53,591.90 53,591.90
3,438.61 3,438.61
29,620.08 29,620.08
2,242,268.59 - - 75,839.00 2,318,107.59
146,056.41 146,056.41
2,726,825.63 64,169.10 42,750.00 2,833,744.73
4,969,094.22 210,225.51 - 118,589.00 5,297,908.73
845,102.53 220,205.38 1,065,307.91
151,595.75 151,595.75
1,341,800.65 1,341,800.65
308,881.20 33,925.03 342,806.23
88,300.29 88,300.29
121,362.03 121,362.03
94,458.12 94,458.12
3,500.00 3,500.00
301,166.47 301,166.47
320,350.99 320,350.99
967,180.10 967,180.10
71,395.00 71,395.00
70,000.00 70,000.00
48,588.76 48,588.76
2,013.00 2,013.00
4,617,106.13 254,130.41 - 118,588.76 4,989,825.30
351,988.09 (43,904.90) - 0.24 308,083.43
(44,360.00) 44,360.00
(44,360.00) 44,360.00 - - -
307,628.09 455.10 - 0.24 308,083.43
764,378.29 (6,826.50) 18,947.83 244 776,502.06
$1,07200638 $ (637140) $ 1894783 _§ 2.68 $ 1,084,585.49
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TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation
in the current fiscal year.

Capital Outlay
Depreciation Expense
Debt Service Assessment Charged to Capital Outlay

Repayment of bond principle is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement
of Net Position and is not reported in the Statement of Activities.

Repayments of Debt

Pension contributions are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However

in the Statement of Activities, the contributions are adjusted for actuarial valuation
adjustments, including service and interest costs, administrative costs, investment returns,
and experience/assumptions. This is the amount by which net pension liability and
deferred inflows/outflows related to pensions changed during the period.

Proceeds from debt issues are a financing source in the governmental funds.
They are not revenues in the statement of activities; issuing debt increases
long-term liabilities in the statements of net position.

Capital Lease Payments
In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated
absences are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the
governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are reported
in the amount of financial resources used (paid).

(Increase) Decrease in Accrued Compensated Absences

In the Statement of Activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardless
of when due. In the governmental funds, interest is reported when due.

(Increase) Decrease in Accrued Interest

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

(B-2)

$

Exhibit B-3

308,083.43

2,013.00
(147,897.28)
(2,013.00)

70,000.00

(39,901.00)

3,868.40

(4,670.00)

361.54

189,845.09




PROPRIETARY FUNDS



ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Inventories
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Due to General Fund
Total Current Liabilities

NET POSITION

Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Proprietary Funds

Statement of

Net Position

June 30, 2017

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Exhibit B4

Food Service After School

Fund Care Totals
$ 7,268.05 $ 7,082.31 $ 14,350.36
2,804.55 2,804.55
5,595.23 5,595.23
15,667.83 7,082.31 22,750.14
39,180.54 39,180.54
26,306.00 26,306.00
12,874.54 - 12,874.54
28,5642.37 7,082.31 35,624.68
10,117.59 10,117.59
6,750.00 6,750.00
16,867.59 - 16,867.59
12,874.54 12,874.54
(1,199.76) 7,082.31 5,882.55
$ 11,674.78 $ 7,082.31 $ 18,757.09
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TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Exhibit B-5

Food Service After School
Fund Care Totals
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges For Services
Daily Sales
Reimbursable Programs $ 16,372.66 $ - 16,372.66
Non-Reimbursable Programs 16,298.95 16,298.95
Community Service Activities 17,504.00 17,504.00
Total Operating Revenue 32,671.61 17,504.00 50,175.61
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of Sales 39,147.62 39,147.62
Salaries 35,593.78 14,376.54 49,970.32
Employee Benefits 8,550.39 1,213.46 9,763.85
Cleaning, Repairs and Maintenance - -
General Supplies 3,464.62 270.42 3,735.04
Management Fee - 10,356.68 10,356.68
Depreciation 1,993.00 1,993.00
Other 5,367.76 - 5,367.76
Total Operating Expenses 104,473.85 15,860.42 120,334.27
Operating Income (Loss) (71,802.24) 1,643.58 (70,158.66)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State Sources
State School Lunch and Breakfast Program 805.48 805.48
Federal Sources
National School Lunch and Breakfast Program 49,556.09 49,556.09
Food Distribution Program 10,067.11 10,067.11
Interest on Investments 26.74 17.88 44.62
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 60,455.42 17.88 60,473.30
Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers (11,346.82) 1,661.46 (9,685.36)
Capital Contributions
Transfers In/(Out)
Change in Net Position (11,346.82) 1,661.46 (9,685.36)
Net Position, July 1 23,021.60 5,420.85 28,442.45
Net Position, June 30 $ 11,674.78 $ 7,082.31 18,757.09
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Exhibit B-6
TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Business-Type Activities -

Enterprise Funds
Food Service After School

Fund Care Total

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts From Customers and Other Funds $ 3267161 $ 17,504.00 $ 50,175.61

Payments to Employees (35,593.78) (14,376.54) (49,970.32)

Payments to Suppliers (66,412.52) (1,483.88) (67,896.40)
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities (69,334.69) 1,643.58  (67,691.11)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

State Sources ) 940.76 940.76

Federal Sources 67,818.72 67,818.72

Due to general Fund 6,750.00 - 6,750.00
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Noncapital Financing Activities 75,509.48 - 75,509.48
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Capital Assets -
Net Cash Provided By (Used in) Capital and Related Financing Activities - - -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest on Investments 26.74 17.88 44.62
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities 26.74 17.88 44.62
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,201.53 1,661.46 7,862.99
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 1,066.52 5,420.85 6,487.37
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 726805 _$§ 708231 _$ 14,350.36

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss) $ (71,80224) $ 1,64358 $(70,158.66)
Adjustments to reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
By (Used In) Operating Activities
Depreciation 1,993.00 1,993.00
(Increase) Decrease

Accounts Receivable .
Inventories ) (1,341.11) (1,341.11)

Prepaid Expenses -
Increase (Decrease)
Accounts Payable 1,815.66 1,815.66

Accrued Expenses

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities $ (69,33469) $ 1,643.58 $(67,691.11)




FIDUCIARY FUNDS




ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Payroll Deductions and Withholding
Due to Student Groups

Total Liabilities
NET POSITION:

Held in Trust for
Flexible Benefit Claims

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

June 30, 2017

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Exhibit B-7

Privite-Purpose
Trust Funds Agency Funds
Flexible Benefits Student
Trust Activity Payroll Total
$ 240.20 $ 12,544.21 $ 275953 § 15,543.94
2,759.53 2,759.53
12,544.21 12,544.21
- 12,544.21 2,759.53 15,303.74
240.20 - - 240.20
$ 240.20 $ (12,54421) § (2,759.53) $ 240.20




Privite-Purpose Trust Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employee

Total Contributions

Investment Earnings
Interest

Total Investment Earnings
Total Additions
DEDUCTIONS

To General Fund
Total Deductions
Change in Net Position
Net Position, July 1

Net Position, June 30

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Exhibit B-8

Flexible-Benefits

Trust Fund

0.60

0.60

0.60

0.60

0.60

240.20

S 202

27



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



NOTE 1

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Introduction

The Township of Weymouth School District is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey,
established to function as an educational institution. The Board consists of elected officials who
are responsible for the fiscal control of the District. A Superintendent is appointed by the Board
and is responsible for the administrative controls of the District.

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the Township of Weymouth School
District (District) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. In its accounting and financial
reporting, the District follows the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). The more significant accounting policies established in (GAAP) and used by the
District are discussed below.

Reporting Entity

The Township of Weymouth School District is a Type Il district located in the County of Atlantic,
State of New Jersey. As a Type Il district, the School District functions independently through a
Board of Education. The Board is comprised of nine members elected to three year terms. The
purpose of the District is to educate students in grades K-8. Students in grades 9-12 attend Buena
Regional High School.

The primary criterion for including activities within the School District’s reporting entity, as set forth
in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards, is whether:

- The organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)

- The District holds corporate powers of the organization
- The District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s Board
- The District is able to impose its will on the organization
- The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the District
- There is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the District
Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The District's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the District as a
whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the District's major funds). Both the government-
wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or
business-type. The District's general, special revenue, capital projects, and debt service are
classified as Governmental Activities. The District's Food Service Program and After School Care
Program are classified as Business-type Activities.




NOTE 1

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

In the Government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the Governmental and Business-type
Activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) are reported on a
full accrual, economic resource basis which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as
well as long-term debt and obligations. The District's net position is reported in three parts:
invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and net position. The District
first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The Government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net costs of each of the
District's functions and Business-type Activity. The functions are also supported by general
government revenues (property taxes, tuition, certain intergovernmental revenues, etc.). The
Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program
revenue, operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the
function (regular instruction, vocational programs, student and instruction related services, etc.) or
Business-type Activities. Operating grants include operating specific and discretionary (either
operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital specific grants.

The net costs (by function or Business-type Activity) are normally covered by general revenue
(property taxes, tuition, interest income, etc.).

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the District as an entity and the
change in the District’s net position resulting from the current year's activities. The government-
wide financial statements do not include fiduciary activity.

Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual funds in the fund financial
statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts
that comprise its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses.
The various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements.

The District reports the following Governmental Funds:
Governmental Funds

The focus of the Governmental Funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon
determination of financial position and change in financial position (sources, uses and
balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description
of the Governmental Funds of the District.

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District. Itis used
to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or
noninstructional equipment which are classified in the Capital Outlay Subfund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District included
budgeted capital outlays in this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles as they
pertain to Governmental entities state that General Fund resources may be used to
directly finance capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the resources in
such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.
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NOTE 1

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Resources from budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New
Jersey Aid, District taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that
result in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land, existing buildings,
improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of
buildings, and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred
from and to Current Expense by Board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue from state and federal governments, (other than major
capital projects, Debt Service or the Enterprise Funds) and local appropriations that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other
than those financed by Proprietary Funds). The financial resources are derived from
temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a
separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major
property acquisition, construction, and improvement programs.

Proprietary Funds

The focus of the Proprietary Funds’ measurement is upon the determination of operating
income, changes in net assets, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted
accounting principles applicable are those similar to business in the private sector. The
following is a description of the Proprietary Funds of the District:

Enterprise Funds — The Enterprise Funds account for all revenues and expenses
pertaining to the Board’s operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (i.e. expenses including
depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services on a continuing basis are
financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

The District reports the following major proprietary funds:

Food Service Fund — This fund accounts for the financial transactions related to the
food service operations of the District.

After School Care Fund — This fund accounts for the financial transactions related to
the District’s after school program.
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NOTE 1

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, or other Governments and therefore not available
to support District programs. The reporting focus is on net position, changes in net position,
and is reported using accounting principles similar to Proprietary Funds.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the Governmental or
Business-type Activities categories. Non-major funds by category are summarized into a
single column. GASB No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of assets, liabilities,
revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and
enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds. The non-major funds are
combined in a column in the fund financial statements.

The District's Fiduciary Funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type.
Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be
used to address activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated
into the Government-wide statements.

The Fiduciary Funds include the Student Activity Fund, Payroll, and Payroll Agency Funds
which are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and not involve measurement of results
of operations.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported on the financial statements. It also relates to the timing
of the measurement made regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Both Governmental and Business-type Activities in the Government-wide financial statements and
the Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

The Governmental Funds financial statements are reported on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when they become susceptible to accrual,
i.e. both measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be
determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter.
Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the
related fund liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on
general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized
as expenditures to the extent they have matured. Proceeds of general obligation long-term debt,
if any, is recognized when due.

The accounting records of the Special Revenue Fund are maintained on the grant accounting
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant
accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are
maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.




NOTE 1

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks, money market
accounts, and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of
purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued interest. U.S. Treasury agency obligations and
certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less when purchased are stated at cost. All
other investments are stated at fair value.

For purposes of determining cash equivalents the District considers all investments with an
original maturity of three months or less as cash equivalents.

New Jersey School Districts are limited to the types of investments and types of financial
institutions they may invest in. However, NJSA 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible
investments that may be purchased by New Jersey School Districts.

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public
funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units
from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

NJSA 17:9-41 et seq. established the requirements for the security of deposits of Governmental
Units. The statute requires that no Governmental Unit shall deposit public funds in a depository
unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include Savings
and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks), and savings banks; the deposits of
which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value
of at least 5% of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of
Governmental Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of
all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the
Governmental Units.

Inventories

Inventories in the General Fund consist of expendable supplies held for the District’s use and are
carried at cost using first-in first-out method. Inventories in the Enterprise Fund are valued at
cost, which approximates market, using first-in first-out method.

Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $2,000 or more are reported at
historical costs or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated
fair market value on the date received. Additions, improvements or other capital outlays that
significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs are
maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all assets is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Asset Class Useful
Land Improvements 10-20 Years
Building and Improvements 10-50 Years
Furniture and Equipment 5-20 Years
Vehicles 5-10 Years
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TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

_ Revenues

Substantially all Governmental Fund revenue is accrued. - Property -taxes.-are susceptible to
accrual and under New Jersey State statute, a municipality is required to remit to its school district
the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school -
year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as revenue. (accrued) at the start of the
fiscal year since the revenue is both measurable and available. The District is entitied to receive
moneys under the established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an
“accounts receivable”. Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which finance either capital or
current operations, are reported as non-operating revenue based on GASB No. 33. In applying
GASB No. 33 to grant revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses and recipient
recognizes receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements, including time
requirements, are met are reported as advances by the provider and deferred revenue by the
recipient.

Expenditures

Expenses are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. 'Inventory costs are reported
in the period when items are used, rather than in the period purchased.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation,
sick leave, and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to
services already rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the
control of the District and its employees is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the
benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services, or that are contingent on a
specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, are accounted for in the
period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial
statements. For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the
amount that is normally expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources. In
proprietary funds, the entire amount of compensated absences is recorded as a fund liability.

Interfund Receivables/Payables

Transfers between Governmental and Business-Type Activities on the District-wide statements
are reported in the same manner as general revenues. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to
another without a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund
transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in Governmental Funds and other non-
operating revenues/expenses in the Enterprise Fund. Repayment from funds responsible for
particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the
financial statements.

On fund financial statements, short-term interfund loans are classified as interfund
receivables/payables. These amounts are eliminated in the Statement of Net Assets, except for
amounts due between governmental and Business-type Activities or Governmental and Agency
Funds, which are presented as internal balances.
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NOTE 1

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the General, Special
Revenue, and Debt Service Funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval
and are approved as long as the District budget is within State mandated CAP’s, there is no public
vote on the budget. If the budget exceeds state mandated CAP’s, the voters have an opportunity
to approve or reject the budget at the regular election held in November. Budgets are prepared
using the modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the Special Revenue Fund as
described later. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within
each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as
established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in NJAC 6:23-2(g). Budget
amendments/transfers of appropriations must be made by School Board resolution at any time
during the fiscal year and are subject to two-thirds majority vote by the School Board and under
certain circumstances require approval by the County Superintendent of Schools. All budget
amendments presented in the accompanying supplementary information reflect the original
budget and the amended budget (which have been adjusted for legally authorized revisions of the
annual budgets during the year).

Appropriations, except remaining projects appropriations, encumbrances, and unexpended grant
appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The Capital Projects Fund presents the
remaining project appropriations compared to current year expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control
device during the year. For Governmental Funds there are no substantial differences between the
budgetary basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of
the legally mandated revenue recognition of one or more June state aid payments for budgetary
purposes only and the Special Revenue Fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the Governmental Fund types.
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

The accounting records of the Special Revenue Fund are maintained on the grant accounting
budgetary basis. The grants accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant
accounting budgetary basis recognized encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are
maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

Encumbrances

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open
encumbrances in Governmental Funds, other than the Special Revenue Fund, are reported as
reservations of fund balances at fiscal year-end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities
but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the Special Revenue Fund, for which the District has received advances,
are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year-end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be

made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified
budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year-end.
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TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have
been satisfied. Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met are
also recorded as deferred revenue.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the District-wide
financial statements. In general, Governmental Fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once
incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from current financial resources, which are
reported as obligations of the funds. However, contractually required pension contributions and
compensated absences that are paid from Governmental Funds are reported as liabilities on the
fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year.
Bonds are recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when due.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect expenses are allocated
to functions but are reported separately in the Statement of Activities. Employee benefits,
including the employer's share of social security, workers compensation and medical and dental
benefits, were allocated based on salaries of that program. Depreciation expense, where
practicable, is specifically identified by function and is included in the indirect expense column of
the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributed to a specific
function is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of
Activities. Interest on long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported
separately on the Statement of Activities.

Extraordinary and Special Items

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and infrequent in
occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of Management
and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither of these types of
transactions occurred during the fiscal year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles required management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net positions invested in
capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by the outstanding balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. Net position are reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.
The District's policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for the
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position funds are available.
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TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance Reserves

Fund Balance - The District reports fund balance in classifications that comprise a hierarchy
based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to honor constraints on the specific
purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. The School District’s classifications
and policies for determining such classifications, are as follows:

Nonspendable — The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot
be spent because they are either not in a spendable form or are legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact. The “not spendable form” criterion includes items that are
not expected to be converted to cash, such as inventories and prepaid amounts.

Restricted — The restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that are restricted to
specific purposes. Such restrictions, or constraints, are placed on the use of resources either
by being (1) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments; or (2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Committed — The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can only be
used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the District’'s
highest level of decision-making authority, which, for the District, is the Board of Education.
Such formal action consists of an affirmative vote by the Board of Education, memorialized by
the adoption of a resolution. Once committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose
unless the Board of Education removes, or changes, the specified use by taking the same
type of action (resolution) it employed to previously commit those amounts.

Assigned — The assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained
by the District's intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor
committed. Intent is expressed by either the Board of Education or by the business
administrator, to which the Board of Education has delegated the authority to assign amounts
to be used for specific purposes.

Unassigned — The unassigned fund balance classification is the residual classification for the
General Fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to
other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes
within the general fund. The General Fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned
fund balance amount. In other funds, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed
the amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to
report a negative unassigned fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both Restricted and Unrestricted Fund
balances are available, the District considers Restricted Funds to have been spent first. When an
expenditure is incurred for which Committed, Assigned, or Unassigned Fund balance are
available, the District considers amounts to have been spent first out of Committed Funds, then
Assigned Funds, and finally Unassigned Funds, as needed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2015, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 75,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”. This
statement, which is effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2017, the impact of this
statement on the net position of the entity is anticipated to be significant.

In March 2016, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 81
“Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements”. This statement, which is effective for fiscal periods
beginning after December 15, 2016, will not have any effect on the District’s financial reporting.

In November 2016, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.
83, “Certain Asset Retirement Obligations”. This statement, which is effective for fiscal periods
beginning after June 15, 2018, will not have any effect on the District's financial reporting.

In January 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement 84,
“Fiduciary Activities”. ~This statement, which is effective for fiscal periods beginning after
December 31, 2018, will not have any effect on the District's financial reporting.

In March 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 85,
“Omnibus 2017". This statement, which is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December
31, 2018, will not have any effect on the District's financial reporting.

In May 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 86,
“Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues”. This statement, which is effective for fiscal periods
beginning after June 15, 2017, will not have any effect on the District’s financial reporting.

In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 87,

“eases”. This statement, which is effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2019,
will not have any effect on the District’s financial reporting.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Custodial Credit Risk Related to Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Districts’ deposits might not
be recovered. Although the District does not have a formal policy regarding custodial credit risk,
N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et seq. requires that governmental units shall deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection
Act. Under the Act, the first $250,000 of governmental deposits in each insured depository is
protected by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Public funds owned by the
District in excess of FDIC insured amounts are protected by GUDPA. However, GUDPA does not
protect intermingled trust funds such as salary withholdings, athletic and student activity funds, or
funds that may pass to the District relative to the happening of a future condition. Such funds are
considered uninsured and uncollateralized.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Custodial Credit Risk Related to Deposits (Continued)

As of June 30, 2017, the District's bank balances of $1,501,780.07 were exposed to custodial
credit risk as follows:

Insured FDIC $ 250,000.00
Uninsured but collateralized with
bank — GUDPA 1,251,780.07

$ 889,251.86

Interest Rate Risk — The District does not have a formal policy that limits investment maturities
as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
However, NJSA 18A:20-37 limits the length of time for most investments to 397 days.

Credit Risk — NJSA 18A:20-37 limits District investments to those specified in the Statutes. The
type of allowable investments are: Bonds of the United States of America or of the District or the
local units in which the District is located; obligations of Federal agencies not exceeding 397 days;
Government Money Market Mutual Funds; the State of New Jersey Cash Management Plan; local
Government investment pools; or repurchase of fully collateralized securities.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest
in any one issuer.

RESERVE ACCOUNT

Capital Reserve

A capital reserve account was established by the District for the accumulation of funds for use as
capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained
in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the District's
approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a
district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual
general fund budget certified for taxes. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when
the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by separate proposal at budget time
or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-
2 Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23 A-5.1(d) 7, the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the
support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

Maintenance Reserve

Maintenance reserve accounts may be established by New Jersey school districts for the
accumulation of funds for the use of required maintenance of a facility. The maintenance reserve
account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual
budget.
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TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
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NOTE 3 RESERVE ACCOUNT (CONTINUED)
The activity of the reserve accounts for the year is as follows:
Beginning Balance; July 1, 2016 $ 456,535.27
Deposits
Board Approval 100,000.00
Withdrawals
Approved at Election
Ending Balance; June 30, 2017 $ 556,535.27
Allocation of Reserve Account at June 30, 2017:
Capital Reserve $ 401,535.27
Maintenance Reserve 155,000.00
$ 556,535.27
NOTE 4 CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows:

Beginning Additions Disposal Ending
Governmental Activities
Buildings and Improvements 8,170,710.00 $ - $ - $ 8,170,710.00
Equipment 184,216.00 - 184,216.00
Total Historical Costs 8,354,926.00 - - 8,354,926.00
Accumulated Depreciation 4,994,077.00 147,897.00 5,141,974.00
3,360,849.00 $ (147,897.00) $ - $ 3,212,952.00
Beginning Additions Disposal Ending
Business-Type Activities
Buildings and Improvements - $ - $ - $ -
Equipment 39,181.00 39,181.00
Total Historical Costs 39,181.00 - - 39,181.00
Accumulated Depreciation 24,313.00 1,649.00 25,962.00
14,868.00 $ (1,649.00) $ - $ 13,219.00
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

During the year ended June 30, 2017 the following changes occurred in long term obligations:

Beginning Increases Decreases Ending
Compensated Absences $ 47,925.00 $ 4,670.00 $ - $ 52,595.00
Capital Leases 7,736.00 3,868.40 3,867.60

Bonds 1,584,000.00 70,000.00 1,514,000.00

$ 1,639,661.00 $ 4,670.00 $ 73,868.40 $ 1,570,462.60

Compensated Absences
Compensated Absences will be paid from the fund from which the employees’ salaries are paid.
Capital Leases Payable

The District is leasing a phone system under the following capital lease:

Original Balance Due
Lease June 30, 2017
Effective 1/29/13, lease purchase of a Telephone
System. Lease is payable in 5 annual instaliment
to Sun Bank, at an interest rate of 1.9%. The first
payment is due 7/15/13. $ 1934100 $ 368740

As of June 30, 2017, minimum lease payments in future years are as follows:

Principal Interest Total

Year Ending June 30,
2018 $ 3,86840 $ 14943 $ 4,017.83

Bonds Payable

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality through
referendums. All bonds are retired within the statutory period of usefulness.

2014 General Obligation Bonds dated April 1, 2014 in the amount of $1,689,000 due in annual
instalments through October 1, 2033 bearing a variable interest rate ranging from 3.000% to
3.625%.

As of June 30, 2017, debt service requirements in future years are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Year Ending June 30,
2018 - $ 70,000.00 $ 46,488.76 $ 116,488.76
2019 70,000.00 44,388.76 114,388.76
2020 70,000.00 42,288.76 112,288.76
2021 75,000.00 40,113.76 115,113.76
2022 75,000.00 37,863.76 112,863.76
Thereafter 1,154,000.00 245,958.24 1,399,958.24

$ 1,514,000.00 $ 457,102.04 $ 1,971,102.04
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Bonds Authorized But Not Issues
As of June 30, 2017, the Board has $0 of bonds authorized but not issued.

Other

Interest paid on debt issued by the District is exempt from federal income tax. Because of this,
bond holders are willing to accept a lower interest rate than they would on taxable debt. The
District temporarily reinvests the proceeds of such debt in higher-yielding taxable securities,
especially during construction projects. The federal tax code refers to this as arbitrage.

Earnings in excess of the yield on the debt issue are rebated to the federal government based on
the requirements in the Internal Revenue Code. Arbitrage rebate payable represents amounts
due to the Internal Revenue Service for interest earned on unspent bond proceeds that exceed
legally allowable returns.

Rebatable arbitrage liabilities related to District debt are not recorded in Governmental Funds.
There is no recognition in the balance sheet or income statement until rebatable amounts are due
and payable to the Federal Government. Thus, rebatable arbitrage liabilities related to
Governmental debt will be accrued as incurred at least annually (at fiscal year-end) on the District-
wide financial statements.

PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans

All required employees of the District are covered be either the Public Employees’ Retirement
System or the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund which have been established by state statue
and are administered by New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the
State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be assumed by the
State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a publically available
financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for
Public Employees Retirement System and Teachers; Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports
may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New
Jersey, 08625 or on the internet at http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annrprts.shtml.

Teacher’s Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) was established as of January 1, 1955, under
the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement, death, and disability, and medical benefits
to certain qualified members. The TPAF is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with
a special funding situation, as under current statute, 100% of employer contributions are made by
the State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-contributing
employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the professional
staff certified by the State Board of Examiners and employees at the Department of Education
who have titles that are unclassified, professional and certified.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

The Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under
provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical benefits to
certain qualified members. The PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is
mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not required to be a
member of another state administered retirement system or other state or local jurisdiction.

Funding Policy

The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of 1994, Chapter 115, P.L. of
1997 (PERS) and N.J.S.A. 18:66 (TPAF) requires contributions by active members and
contributing employees. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of
New Jersey legislation. TPAF and PERS provide for employee contributions of 6.78% of
employees’ annual compensation, as defined. Employers are required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate in both TPAF and PERS.

Three Year Trend Information

June 30,
2017 2016 2015

District Contribution

PERS $ 28,128 $ 27,962 $ 28,879
State of New Jersey Contribution

TPAF $ 143,227 $ 121,571 $ 82,713

TPAF Post-Retirement Benefits $ 119,341 $ 144,757 $ 130,763

TPAF Social Security $ 86,836 $ 95,511 $ 99,377

The amounts contributed by the State of New Jersey listed above are not required to be budgeted,
and have been included in the financial statements as revenues and expenditures in accordance
with GASB 27.

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District for the
employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base
salaries.

PERS and TPAF Vesting and Benefit Provisions

The vesting and benefits provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.S.A
18A:6C for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to ten years of service, except for medical benefits
that vest after 25 years of service. Retirement benefits for age and service are available at age 60
and are generally determined to be 1/60 of the final average salary for each year of service credit,
as defined. Final average salary equals the average salary for the final three years of service prior
to retirement (or highest three years’ compensation it other than the final three years). Members
may seek early retirement after achieving 25 years of service credit or they may elect deferred
retirement after achieving eight to ten years of service in which case benefits would begin the first
day of the month after the member attains normal retirement age. The TPAF and PERS provides
for specified medical benefits for members who retire after achieving 25 years of qualified service,
as defined, or under the disability provisions of the System. Members are always vested for their
own contributions and, after three years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest
earned on the contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are
entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Public Employees’ Retirement System

At June 30, 2017, the District reported a liability of $937,735 for its proportionate share of net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension
liability to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial variation as of that
date. The District's proportion of the net pension liability is based on a projection of the District's
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2016, the District's proportion was
0.0031%.

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized pension expense of $68,029 and
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from
the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differrences Between Expected and Actual Experience $ 17,439 $ -
Changes of Assumptions 194,249
Net Differences Between Projected and Actual Investment Eamings 35,757
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between Contributions and
Proportionate Share Contributions 79,793
247,445 79,793
District;s Subsequent Contribution 28,128
$ 275,573 $ 79,793

The amount of $28,128, reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, resulting
from the District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

June 30,
2018 $ 36,883
2019 36,883
2020 43,590
2021 35,207
2022 15,089

$ 167,652
———————
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liability for the June 30, 2016 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2015, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2016
using the following assumptions:

Inflation: 3.08%
Salary Increase:
2015-2026 1.65% - 4.15% based on age
Thereafter 2.65% - 5.15% based on age
Investment Rate of Return: 7.65%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Preretirement Mortality
Table for male and female active participants. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the
RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality Tables (set back 1 year for males and
females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members and a one-year static
projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2014.

Long Term Expected Rate of Return — In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected
rate of return on plan investments is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the
Directors of the Division of investments and Division of pensions and Benefits, the board of
trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in PERS's target asset allocations as of June 30, 2016 are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return
Cash 5.00% 0.87%
US Treasuries 1.55% 1.74%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 1.79%
Mortgages 2.10% 1.67%
High Yield Bonds 2.00% 4.56%
Inflation-Indexed Bonds 1.50% 3.44%
Broad US Equities 26.00% 8.53%
Developed Foreign Equities 13.25% 6.83%
Emerging Market Equities 6.50% 9.95%
Private Equity 9.00% 12.40%
Hedge Funds/Absolute Return 12.50% 4.68%
Real Estate (Property) 2.00% 6.91%
Commodities 0.50% 5.45%
Global Debt ex US 5.00% -0.25%

REIT 5.256% 5.63%
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.98% as of
June 30, 2016. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments of 7.65% and a municipal bond rate of 2.85% as of June 30,
2016, respectively, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes
tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from
employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. Based on
those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make future
benefit payments of current plan members through 2034. Therefore, the long-term expected rate
of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2034, and the
municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that due date in determining
the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate — The following presents the collective net pension liability as of June 30, 2016, calculated
using the discount rate disclosed above, as well as what the collective net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage —point lower or 1-percentage —
point higher than the current rate:

Current Discount

1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
(2.98%) (3.98%) (4.98%)
District's Proportionate Share
of Net Pension Liability $ 1,123,406 $ 937,735 $ 784,228

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued State of New Jersey Division of pensions and
Benefits financial report at http://www.nj.gov/treasury/pensions/financial-rpts-home-shtml.

Teacher’s Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions - The employer contributions for the district are legally required
to be funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18:66-33. Therefore, the District employer)
is considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the
State is treated as a nonemployed contributing entity. Since the District (employer) does not
contribute directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net
pension liability or deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the District.

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized pension expense of $897,490 and
revenue of $897,490 for support provided by the State. The measurement period for the pension
expense and revenue reported in the District's financial statements (A-2) at June 30, 2017 is
based upon changes in the collective net pension liability with a measurement period of June 30,
2015 through June 30, 2016. Accordingly, the pension expense and the related revenue
associated with the support provided by the State are based upon changes in the collective net
pension liability between July 1, 2015 and June 30, 2016
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Teacher’s Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

At June 30, 2017 the State’s portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the District
was $11,944,855 as measured on June 30, 2016 and $9,629,640 as measured on June 30, 2015.

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liability for the June 30, 2016 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2015, which was rolled forward to June 30,
2016. The actuarial valuation used the following assumptions, applied to all periods in the
measurement:

Inflation: 2.5%
Salary Increases
2012 —2021: Varies Based on Experience
Thereafter Varies Based on Experience
Investment Rate of Return: 7.90%

Pre-retirement, post-retrement and disable mortality rates were based on experience of TPAF
members reflecting mortality improvement on a generational bases based on a 60 year average
of Social Security data from 1953 to 2013.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2015.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return — In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected
rate of return on plan investments is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the
Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pension and Benefits, the Board of
Trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in TPAF’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2016 are summarized in the
following table:

: Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return
US Cash 5.00% 0.39%
US Government Bonds 1.50% 1.28%
US Credit Bonds 13.00% 2.76%
US Mortgages 2.00% 2.38%
US Inflation-Indexed Bonds 1.50% 1.41%
US High Yield Bonds 2.00% 4.70%
US Equity Markets 26.00% 5.14%
Foreign-Developed Equity 13.25% 5.91%
Emerging Markets Equity 6.50% 8.16%
Private Real Estate Property 5.25% 3.64%
Timber 1.00% 3.86%
Farmland 1.00% 4.39%
Private Equity 9.00% 8.97%
Commodities 0.50% 2.87%
Hedge Funds - MultiStrategy 5.00% 3.70%
Hedge Funds — Equity Hedge 3.75% 4.72%
Hedge Funds — Distressed 3.75% 3.49%
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Teacher’s Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the State’s total pension liability was 3.22%
as of June 30, 2016. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate
of return on pension plans investments of 7.65% and a municipal bond rate of 2.85% as of June
30, 2016, respectively, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from
plan members will be made at current member contribution rates and that contributions from
employers (State of New Jersey) will be made based on an average of the last five years. Based
on those assumption, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2029. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments
through 2029, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit pay.

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of net pension liability to change in the discount
rate — Since the District has no proportionate share in the net person liability of the special funding
situation, the District would not be sensitive to any changes in the discount rate. Detailed
information about the pension plan’s sensitivity of the collective net pension liability to changes in
the discount rate is available in the separately issued State of New Jersey Division of Pensions
and Benefits financial report at http://www.nj‘gov/treasury/pesion/pdf/ﬁnancial/gasb68-tpaf1 5.pdf.

Pension plan fiduciary net position — Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued State of New Jersey Divisions of Pensions and Benefits
financial report at http://www.nj.gov/treasury/pensions/ﬁnancial—rprts-home.shtml.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP)

The Defined Contribution Retirement Program (‘DCRP”) established on July 1, 2007 under the
provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007
(N.J.S.A. 45:15C-1 et seq.). The DCRP is a cost sharing multiple-employer defined contribution
pension fund. The DCRP provides eligible members, and their beneficiaries with tax-sheltered,
defined contribution retirement benefits, along with life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting
and benefit provisions are established by N.J.S.A. 43:15C-1 et seq.

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990,c.6 required Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-retirement medical
benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or
on a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, ¢.103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-
retirement medical benefits through TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the
pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State
employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2016, there were 110,512 retirees
receiving post-retirement medical benefits, and the State contributed $1.37 billion on their behalf.
The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State in accordance with P.L.
1994 ¢.62. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from a prefunding basis to a
pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal year 1994.
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POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 c. 126, which provides free
health to members of PERS, and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of
education or county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $231.2 million toward
Chapter 126 benefits for 20,045 eligible retired members in fiscal year 2016.

The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes
Annotated, Title 52, Article 17.25 et.seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the
program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. The State of
New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for SEHBP.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by
the entities listed below, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement,
death or unforeseeable emergency.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance

The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property, liability, student accident and
surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical Section
of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under
the "Contributory Method".

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30, 2017:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $ 62,118.88
Special Revenue Fund 54,368.88
Food Service Fund 6,750.00
Capital Projects Fund 1.000.00.
Total $ 6211888 $ 6211888
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INVENTORY

Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2017 consisted of the following:

Food $ 4,692.05
Supplies 903.18
$ 550523

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A is the difference between
market value and cost of the commodities at the date of purchase and has been included as an
item of nonoperating revenue in the financial statements.

DEFICIT UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION

The governmental activities has a deficit in unrestricted net assets of $831,974.21. This deficit is
attributable to the allocation of compensated absences balances payable, accrued interest
payable and net pension liability.

EXCESS SURPLUS

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, the designation for Restricted Fund Balance - Excess
Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to
reserve General Fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a
required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years' budget.

FUND BALANCES
Restricted

The restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific
purposes, such restrictions, or constraints, are placed on the use of resources by either of the
following: (1) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments; or (2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
Specific restrictions of the District’s fund balance are summarized as follows:

General Fund

For Excess Surplus - Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to N.J.S.A.
18A-7F-7 as amended. New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General
Fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a
required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years' budget.
The excess surplus balance at June 30, 2017 is $176,508.09.

For Capital and Maintenance Reserve — At of June 30, 2017, the balance in the capital
reserve account was $401,535.27 and the balance in maintenance reserve account was
$155,000. These funds are restricted for future expenditures.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund restricted fund balance at June 30, 2017 is
$2.68.
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FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
Assigned

The assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the District's
intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Specific
assignments of the District's fund balance are summarized as follows:

General Fund

Other Purposes - At of June 30, 2017, the District had $306,900.61 of encumbrances
outstanding for purchase orders and contracts signed by the District, but not completed,
as of the close of the fiscal year.

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures — the District has appropriated and
included as an anticipated revenue for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, 19,633.91.

Unassigned

The unassigned fund balance classification is the residual classification for the general fund. This
classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not
been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. The
District's unassigned fund balance is summarized as follows:

General Fund
As of June 30, 2017, $12,428.50 of general fund balance was unassigned.

Special Revenue Fund

The District has a deficit fund balance of $6,371.40 in the Special Revenue Fund as of June
30, 2017 as reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). P.L. 2004, c. 97
provides that in the event a state school aid payment is not made until the following school
budget year, Districts must record the last payment as revenue, for budget purposes only, in
the current school budget year, For intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33
requires that recognition (revenue, expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry i.e., if
one government recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability. Since the
State is recording the last state aid payment in the subsequent fiscal year, the District cannot
recognize the last state aid payment on the GAAP financial statements until the year the state
records the payable. Due to the timing difference of recording the last state aid payment, the
General Fund balance deficit does not alone indicate that the District is facing financial
difficulties.

Pursuant N.J.S.A. 18A:22-442 any negative unreserved, undesignated Special Revenue
Fund balance that is reported as a direct result from a delay in the payment of state aid until
the following fiscal year, is not considered a violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor
in need of corrective action.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Federal and State Grants

The District participates in a number of federal and state grant programs. The grant programs are
subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The District is
potentially liable for expenditures which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant
programs. Management is not aware of any material items of noncompliance which would resuit
in the disallowance of program expenditures.

General

Per confirmation by the District's legal counsel, there are no material pending litigation, claims,
assessments or contingent liabilities against the District.

TAX ABATEMENTS

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax abatement is an
agreement between a government and an individual or entity in which the government promises to
forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that
contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. School
districts are not authorized by New Jersey statute to enter into tax abatement agreements.
However, the county or municipality in which the school district is situated may have entered into
tax abatement agreements, and that potential must be disclosed in these financial statements. If
the county or municipality entered into tax abatement agreements, those agreements will not
directly affect the school district’s local tax revenues because NJSA 54:4-75 and NJSA 54:4-76
require that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and remitted
to the school district.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions that occurred as of

November 17, 2017 the date that the financial statements were issued for possible disclosure and
recognition in the financial statements and no items were noted for disclosure or adjustment.

51



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
PART li | ,




BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES




26'91v 268 26'815'696 v 00°201°LLS'Y 00'vS9'€ 00'8YY' €SV
€€°'9.6'6V¢€ €€°05¢.2.2 00¥.2'22€C 00'¥S9'€ 00'029'€.£C
£€'9€8'08 ££'0£8'98
00°2.S 00°2.S
00°LPE'6LL 00°'LPE'6LL
00°.22'ehl 00°L22'evl
00°080'C 00°080'2 00'080'C
00°09t'2 00°09¥'2 0009’2
0009’ 00°09%'2 00°09%'
002912 002912 002912
00'¥59'c 00'v¥59'c 00'v¥59°¢
00°'LSY'LPT 00°LSY' L2 (00°291'2) 00°8L9'€¥2
00°26G°LS 00°/6S'LS 00°L6S'LS
00'66€'G9L 00'66€'S91 00'66€'591
00°GEL'LSL 00°SEL'LGL 00°6€L'LG)
00°4.8'8vL'L 00°L28'8vL'L 00'LL8'8vL'L
65°0vb' ¢y 65'892'2ve'C 00'828'661°2 - 00'828'661'C
8001961 80'029'62 00°0L0°0L 0001001
L9'8eb'e 19'8e¥'e
06°16¢£'61 06°165'€S 00°002'v€ 00°00Z've
- 00'819's5L'C ¢ 00819'651L'C $ - 00'8L9'ssL'z ¢
|enjoy 0} jeulq lenjoy jobpng slajsuel] 1ebpng
aouelep leulq 18bpng leuibuo
L10Z ‘0¢ aunf papu3 JeaA [edsid a8y} 104
a|npayosg uospedwon Lieyabpng
pung jeiauas
10141S1d TOOHOS HLNOWA3M 40 dIHSNMOL
-0 Nayx3

sanuaAay |ejoL

$82IN0S 8}E}S |BJOL

Aunoag |enos dvdl
Aynaesia 4vdl
[eSIPB JuBWBINSY 1S0d 4VdL
uoisuad 4vdl
pajabpng-uoN jeyag-uQ
piy Aleuipioenx3
piv Ajunwwo) Bujuies] jeuoissajold
PIv umoig l1dnd Jed
Pl ssaulpeay OOYvd
PIv Juswisnipy [euonippy
piy uoneuodsues ) aignduoN
piv Juswisnipy
piv Anoeg
ply |eouobeje) uonesnp3 |eloads
ply uoneuodsuel)
piv uoneziienby
$32.n0S 8)ejS

$821n0G €207 |BJOL

snoaue||@9sipy
S)UBW)SBAU| UO paule] jsalsiu|
uojjeyodsuel|
uonping
Ane xe] [eo0T]

$80.In0g [e207]

S3NN3AZA




12'29v'62 S¥'86022L 9112551 (¥8709272) 002827851
06'855'82 0Z'svz'9L 91'#08'v01 (¥8°09272) 00'G90CH1
00°00S 00°00S 00°005
96'850'82 0Z'5v2'9. 91'v0E'P0L (b8°092'2) 00'G9S'LLL
G/'€06 GZ'EL8'SY 00°Z12L'9% - 00°ZLL79p
00°00S 00°00S 00°00S
G.'e0b GZ'elg'sh 00°212'9Y 00°LLZ'9p
1G'€¥0'981 €G°20L'Gy8 Y0'OpL'LE0"L ¥0'P¥9'GG1 00'205'G/8
€62V €62V (€9°025%) 00°000°S
20'518've L2'969'G1 62°'L15'0¥ (12'884'2) 00°000'cy
00981 05°2s€'L 06'8€G'2 05°8€€ 00°00Z'L
G6'L18'L GSZhL'PL 05'¥55'01L (0g°s¥6) 00°00S'ZL
00°2GY 00'.G¥ (00°€69) 00051}
18'88 eL'zeL'Lol 00°'128'L0L (00'000'€L) 00'L28'PLL
ov'z8L'z ov'z8L'z (09°21€) 00'005'2
00°000'09 12°095'692 12°096'62¢ 12'886'29 00'2.5'252
€1'v¥89'86 82°196'L9€ 1G'9Y9'09Y 16'822°LL1L 00'898'8¥¢
9L vpb'SL 9. phb'SL (vZ'ovy'e) 00'168'2L
|enjoy 0} |eutq |enjoy 18bpng siajsuelr] yebpng
aouelep leuiq }abpng leuibuo

-0 31qiyx3

L10Z ‘0¢ aunf papug Jea |edsid ey] Jo4

8|npayog uospedwon Aiejabpng

pund |essuss

10141S1a TOOHOS HLNOWA3M 40 dIHSNMOL

uononJsu| - uopeanp [eeds |ejoL

18jue)) 80IN0SBY/WO0Y 82IN0S8Y [B10 ).

saljddng |elauan
slayoea] Jo sauejes
18U 82IN0SAY/WO0Y 82IN0SBY

salliges!q a|dnini [el0L

uononyisu| loj sauejes 18410
siayoes] Jo seuejes
saiiqestq adnin
uononisuj - uoneonp3 jepadsg

uoponusu - sweiboid seinbay ejo |

$}00q)Xa |
saljddng |ejsuag
(sauas 00G-00p) s@dIAI8S paseydind 18yl
S8JIAI8S |BOIUYD3 | paseydind
S82|AI8G |euoljeanp-{euoissajold paseydind
uonjonJisu| 10} seleleS 18yl
:uononuysu] paynquisipun - swelbold Jeinbay
uonjonJisu| 10} selejes Jayi0
uooNJsu| 8WoH - sweiboid sejnbay
slayoes] Jo salejes - -9 Sepels)
si1ayoea] jo saliejes - G-| sepeld)
siayoea) Jo sauejes - uspebiapupy
slayoes] jo salejes - jooyasald
uononysuj - sweiboid Jejnbay
asuadx3 jusun)
SIUNLIANIIX3




7K1 ANZA 68’26l (G1°209) 00'Z88'61
000} 000} 000t
¥.°GL 9Z'60L't 00'52L'y 00'G26'2 00051t
G9'6EL'SL G8'6EL'GL (51°285'¢) 002z.'8L
GEBLY'VC G9'008LYE"L 00°022'99¢" | (00°221'601) 00°ZvES.Y'L
1G0LETLE 1G0LETLE (6v'c12'62) 002019
SE8LY've ¥1'266'852 6v°0LY'€82 69°005'6 00°016'€LZ
00'¥89'61 00'¥89'61 00'%98'¢ 00°028'Sl
00'858'¥62 00'858'v62 00'858'v62
00°000'2Z8 00°000'Z8 (00'822'26) 00'822'vLL
00’1 00°'956'v59 00°256'PS9 00°256'PS9
80'¥92'€82 82'869'966 9€'29v' 0821 0£'828'661 00'¥£9'080}
058126 - 058126 058681 000282
00°009 00°009 00°009
05'8LL'6 05'8LL'6 05'868'L 00°022'.L
9€'6£5'85 0€'2£5°6¢ 99'9/0'88 99'9v5'6¥ 00°0€5'8€
{00°00S) 00°00S
9€'6£5'85 0£'2£6'62 99'9/0'88 99'9¥0'05 00'0£0'8€
jenjoy 0} |euid |enjoy ame:m slajsuel | ummvzm
adueuen leul4 “mmvzm _mc_m_._O

1-0 Haux3g

1102 ‘0€ aunp papu3 Jea |eds)d 8y 404

a|npayos uosiedwon Aiejebpng

pund [ejeuss

1O01¥1SsId TOOHOS HLNOWASM 40 dIHSNMOL

YIOAA [BID0S puUB 8douepuajy - sainjipuadxg pajnquisipun |ejo L

sjeusjely pue seyddng
S8OIAI8G |BoIuUyda | paseyodind
saleles
3IOAA |BIDOS pue 8ouepuslly - sainjipuadxy pejnquisipun

uononsuy - sesnyipuadx3 paynquisipun ejoL

8jEIS UIyIM sajqesiq S|00YIS 8jeAlld - uolint

sjooyog AeQ |euoiBey pue ASSO 0) uoninL

|eloadsg - |00yoS jeuoiedoA Ajuno o} uoing

1einbay - jooyos |euoyesop Ajuno) o) uoming

|e1oads - 8je)g ay) UIYIAA Sv3T 18y o} uoiing

lejnBay - s1elg 8y} UIYIAM SYIT J8YI0 0} uoBINL
uopnonJsu| - sainypuadx3 paynquisipun

sweib0.d 3Siy-}y pue uononijsuj [ejo L
uoioONJISU| - SBNIAIOY JBIN1LLIND0Y) Pa1osu0dg-|ooyds (ejo)
sjelajey pue sayddng
saleles
uoloNJISU| - SBRIANOY JBINoLIIND0Y palosuodg-looyss
uononsy| - |eipaway/s|INS diseqd [ejoL
saljddng |esausn

sieyoea] jo saleles
uononJjsu| - [eipswuay/s||iis diseg

54




002289, S92IAJ9S [BUOHONIISU] JO JuswaAaoldwl - sainyipuadx3 paynqgulsipun [ejoL

00°00G ¥0'S28'v. ¥0'G2ZE'S. (96796%'1L)
00°00S 00°00S 00'00S
¥0'528'v. ¥0'528'v. (96°961'1) 00°22€'9.
8670651 01°8€0'€0} 89885 ¥0L 89°0E.'Cl 00'858'06
G9'8GE GE'189 000v0'L 000¥0'L
or'L 09'801'62 00°0LL'SZ 000LL'ZL 00°000'€}
19'662 98'8eY' vl LY'8€2'SL ly'T58'L 00'98¢e'€l
26°06€ 62'608'29 12°002'€9 (62'1€2) 00°Zey'e9
0000 ZZ'66.'0Y ZT6SY LY (8218172) 00'L¥9'8Y
00002 0000 0000
22'65.'0¥ 2T'65L'0¥ zT6vL'8E 000102
(o0'LE6'SY) 00°'L€6'GY
8/°90G 22'990'29 00'€.6'29 (006.21) 00'8¥8'89
8/°905 A3 ZAD 00'0SZ'L {0o005€1) 0000}°€
00'sZ 00's2 (00's21) 00°002
00°00L'} 00°00L°} 0005 00°0S0'L
00'869'v9 00'869'v9 00°002 00'86%'¥9
|enjoy 0) jeulq |enjoy 18bpng slajsuels| jebpng
aoueep |eul 1obpng feuibluo

1-0 3qiyx3

L10Z ‘0€ aunf papu3 Jesj [edsid a8yl Jod
a|npayoss uospedwos Aiejabpng
pung |eJauss

sjeusjepy pue sayddng
uononJsuj jo siosiaadng Jo seueles
S8JI1A18G [eUOHONI}SU| JO Juawaaoidwy - saunyipuadx3 paynquisipun

swea| Apms pliyd - sanypuadx3 painquisipun (ejol

sjeuajey pue sayddng
S3JIA18G |EOIUYDD| PUB |BUOISSB)0Id paseydind Jaylo
S)uB}SISSY [BOLS|D PUE |BLIBJ2I0BS JO Salejes
}JelS |euoissajold JaylO Jo salejes
swes ) Apnis pliyo - seunjipuadx3 panguysipun

S80JAI8S pajedy B 1d ‘LO 'yoeads - saunypuedx3 painguisipun |ejoL

sjeusie pue saiddng
S8IAI8G |euoljeanp] - |BUOISS8)0.d paseydind
saleles

Se0IAIeg PajelY B 1d ‘L0 ‘Yoseds- ‘puadx3 jsipun

S82IAISS Y)jeaH - sesnyipuadxg pajnauysipun [ejol

sjeuajejy pue saddng
(sauas 00G-00) s@2IA18S paseyaind 18yl
S80IAISS [BOIUYDS| pUB |BUOISSBJ0.Id pPaseydind
salees

S80IAI8S Y)esH - sainyipuadx3 pajnquisipun

10141S1d TOOHOS HLNOWA3M 40 dIHSNMOL




€5'812'8l 62°00€'88 78816901 Z8°96£°G1 0072ZL'16 uojelISIUILIPY [BJBUSD - s8dIAIRS Hoddng - seinjipuadxd peynglisipun [ejoL
0.6 0£'026'C 00°000'€ 00000 sea4 pue senq diysiaqwaly uoieanp3 jo pseog
00°0LL'Y 000LL'Y 00019 00°00S'E sainyipuadx3 snoaue(|8dsIy
00004 00004 0000} saliddng Buneaiy/bujutes | asnoH-uj uojeosnpl jo pieog
1G'6EE') 6t'120'C 00'19¢'e 00°'196 00°00%'2 saljddng |esaus
88'622'9 88'622'9 88'962 00'626'S [585 '® 0£S uey) J8YI0] (00S-00Y) MBS YaInd oSN
00'6¥1 00'6¥1 (00°101) 00052 S8OIAI8S PaseyoInd JeyjO uoiednp3 jo pieog
90°'GLL'L 89'698°01 vLyv0'zL (9z°55t) 00°005°C} auoyda|a | /SUOHEDIUNWIWIOD
00251 00°'gee'e 00°Z6t'e (00°0L€) 00'Z08'c S8OIAI8G [BOJUYDB | paseydind
00°000'6 00°000'6 00°000'8} 00°000'6 00'000'6 sead Jipny
9z'/9¢'9 00'602'6 92'9/6'G1L 92'9/8'L 0000L'2 saojneg [eba
¥6'65¥'0v ¥6'65¥'0F (90°L8%'2) 00'L¥6'Zy seueles

uoneJSIuIWPY [Blauas) - saoiaeg poddng - seanyipuadx3 pajnquisipun

00°00%'L - 0000t} 00°00¥ 00°000°} saoinag Buiules] yeys leuononisul - saunyipuadx3 panqusipun eloL
00001 0000} 00001 sjeuaje|y pue seyddng
0000} 00004 00001 (seui@s 00S-00v) S8OIAIES paseydInd 1ayi0
00°'00% 00°00¥ 00°00¥% Sa2IAI8S [eUOEONPT - |BUOISSBJ0Id paseyaInd
00008 00°008 00°00% 00°00% ssliejes Jayio

S8JIAIRS m:_:_w._ 1 Jels jeuoionlisuy - wm‘_::vcwaxw pajnquisipun

8v'G6v'L LGEV6'E 66'8EY'S 7019.%) 0000Z2'6 Aeaqp [100yag/S8OIAIRS BIPSIN [BUOHEINPT - SBIN)ipuadx3 painquisipun [ejoL
00°002 00002 00002 s|enaje|y pue sayddng
8669 LGEV6'e 66'8€9'Y (10°195'€) 00002'8 (saues p0G-00p) sedIAIBg paseyoind Jayio
(00°001) 00°001 S80IAIBG [BD1UYOS ] PUE [BUOISSBJ0Id Poseydind
00°009 00°009 (o0-004) 00'00Z sajeleg

Kleiqi] jooyog/seoinlag eipapy [euonesnps - sainjipuadxy pejnqusipun

|enjoy 0} |euiq |enjoy 1ebpng slajsuel jebpng
Sdueliep leu4 1ebpng jfeuibuo

-0 Nqlyxg

L10Z ‘0€ aunr papu3 Jesaj [edsid 8yl Jod
a|npayog uosiiedwon Aiejabpng
pung jeiauan)

10141S1d TOOHOS HLNOWAIM 40 dIHSNMOL




sapioe |00yoS 10} 8duBUBIUIRY pPalinbay- seinypuadx3 pajnquisipun (ejoL

s}08(qo JaY0
sa||ddng |e1suad
$82|A18S 8oueUdjUiRN pue ‘Jleday ‘Buiues|)
salees
SaAI8SaYy @oueuajulely aseasou|
saljiIoe 4 |00YDS 10} @dueusiulely palinbay - sainypuadx3 pajnquisipun

KBojouysa ] oju| uiupy - sainjipuadxy pajnquysipun [eoL

$90IAI8S |BOIUYDD | paseydind
KBojouyoa] oju| uipy - sainjipuadx3 paynquysipun

seojAleg [Bua) - salnjipuadxy pejnqusipun ejoL

sainjipuadx3 snosue|j8osi
sjeuajepy pue sajddng
(selas 005-00%) S@dIAI8S paseydind snoaue||8osiiN
S80IAIaG |BDIUYDR | paseydind
S80JAIS |BUOISSBJ0Id PaseYdInd
sauees
S80JAIBS [BJJUAD - sainypuadx3y paynquisipun

uoHEeASIUILPY |00YDS - S8dIAIeg Joddng - sainypuedx peinquisipun (el

s|eusiey pue se|ddng

Sjue)SISSY |BJ1IB|D) PUE [BlIB)8II8S JO Salejes

si0)0811q Wwelboid/siediould juejsissy/siediould Jo salees
uofeSIuILIPY |00YDS - sadiA18g Hoddng - saunjipuadxy pejnquisipun

10141813 TOOHOS HLNOIWAIM 40 dIHSNMOL |

€6°0L9°€l 66'8.6 6. Z6'6¥9'€6 z6'eTy'e 00'922'L6
00°00% 00°00% o000l 00°00¢€

20'v9 86°G€0'2 000012 (00°005'1) 00°009'¢

16°909'¢l 60°€6v'92 00°00L'0¥ 00°00L's 00°000'G€
26'6¥0'LS 26'6¥0°'LS (80°9.2'1) 00'92€'2S

- 00°005'€ 00°00S'¢ - 00°00S5'€

00°00S'¢ 00'00S'€ 00'00S°€

L6511 Z1'85Y v6 98'¢19'66 (1°60S't) 00°6L1'00L
¥8'920'C ¥8'v20'C ¥8'¥20'L 00°000°}

€96l Ly'v86 00°000'} (00°000't) 00°000°'

00°08¢ 00°08¢ (00'02) 00°00%

9G°06 y¥'606'C 00°000'¢ 00°000'¢

59699 GE0ee'0l 00°000°L} 00°000't1
20'602'8. 20'602'8. (86°605't) 0064228

|74 V4 €0°29¢' L2l Lzzse’lel 1L2°86V'8 00'v88°CL1

vzoe 88'19 4 %4°] (88°L16) 000001
€8°/95'2¢ €8°296'2¢ (21°216) 00°G8p'ce
ze'zel'ss ce'zelL'ss zeeee'ol 00'66€'8.

1enjoy o) jeutd |enjoy 1abpng sisjsuesj 1ebpng
aouelen |eul4 1ebpng leuibuo
L10Z ‘0€ aunp pepuz JesA [edsid 8y) 104
a|npaysg uosyuedwos Aiejabpng
pund jessuas)
-0 3qiyx3g




1£'8G9' PP Lv'99171L0€ 8. '¥29'GYE 8LV.TLE 00°0SS'¥LE
26'¢08'} L0'€€9'9 66'9¢h'8 (10'691°1) 00'909'6
26'€56 80°9F 00000} 00°000't
00°058 00'0SZ 00°009't 00°009't
66'9£8'S 66'9£8'S (10'691°1) 00'900'Z
ov'e81'62 \WyeSvie 18/8L°€VT /8'610°0€ 00812°€l2
z0'ezl'ee zZ0'cel'ee (86'9227C1) 00°00079F
0'612'2L 10'612'2L L0'61Z'VL 00°000'8S
L2189 12189 (62°8LL'L) 00°008'}
1012801 12°898'v1 8.'612'SC 8.'612'6 00°005'9}
61'G.5 L8'vee 00°008 (00°002) 00°000°}
00°000'0} 00°000'0} 00°000°'0L
61'8/9'21 sz'1zL'el 00°00¥'LE 00°00%'9L 00°000'S1
(00°00¢) 00°00¢
62€LL'LL 6Z€LL'LL 62'9.2'¢ 00°2£8'€l
158G 6v'220'2S 00°180'2S 00008 00°'182'16
|enjoy o} jeuidq |enjoy ummusm siajsuel | ummusm
aoueep jeulq4 yobpng leutbuo

1-0 Naiyx3

10141S1d TOOHOS HLNOWAIM 40 dIHSNMOL

L10Z ‘0€ aunr papuz Jeaj [edsld ay) Jod
a|npayog uosypedwos Aiejebpng
pun |eJauen

JuBld JO SduBUBjUIEY *® suoneiadQ - sainypuadx3 pejnqulsipun [e10L

spunoJo jo deaxdn pue ased [ejoL

saljddng |eisuag)
$80IAI8S @oueusjulely pue ‘iedey ‘Bujues|d
saleles
Spunols Jo deaxdn 3 aie) - sainjipuadx3 paynquisipun

S0IAI8S [BIPOISND - Sainjipusdx3 panquisipun (ejoL

110 - ABiau3]
Ayouyoe|3 - ABisug
seq |einjeN - ABisu3g
sal|ddng |e1suan)
S@0IAI8G paseydInd snosuejjaosiy
aouelnsuy|
$80IAI8G 9ouBUBjUlRN pue Jeday ‘Buiues|d
S80IAI8S [BOIUYDS | pUB |BUOISSJ0Id paseydind
S8pIy |euoioNIISuU|-UoN Jo saleles
saliejes
S80IAI8S [BIpoiSNY - saln)ipuadx3 peynquisipun




(61°¥00'922) 0L'081°296 16°€09'0¥L 16'919'LE 00°286'80. sjyeueg aako|dw3 - seDIAI8S [BUOSIa [BIOL

(eevov'eve) €€'9.6'6V€ - - - . suopNquIuo) jleyeg-ug [eloL
(€€'9£8'98) ££'0£8'08 Aunoeg (81908 4vdl
00'2.8 Augesig dvdL
(00" L¥E'6L1L) 00°LYE'6LL |eSIPaN JuUsWaeY 1S0d JVdL
(00°222'cVL) 00°.2Z'epl uoisuad 4vd.l

pajabpng-uoN suonnquuoy jleyeg-uo

¥1°00¥'€Z1 21€02'219 16°€09'0vZ 16919'LE 00°/86'80. sjjjouag pejesojjeun [ejol
22 %) 9.'910'S 00'659'S {(00°008) 00'65V'9 * siyeuag sskojdw3 Jeyi0
00'866'0€ 00°'866'0€ 00'866'81 00°000'Z1 Juswasinquiiy uofing
81'998'06 79 299'€LS 00°¥€5'¥09 00'¥€5'¥09 sjysueg yjesH
LLgLL 00°000°L} 2L (68°228'€) 00°000'S 4 uojesuadwo) s,usWIOM
82'626'6 82'626'6 (22°89) 00'866'6 uoyesuadwo) juswhojdwaun
00'502'82 00'502'82 (00'v62'2) 00'666'0€ JejnfBay - suoynguiuoY Juswailey Jayio
19122 16'¥8€ 61 25°901'0S 25'604'02 00°266'62 suofnquiuod Anoag (eoog

aoueinsuj dnoto
sjysuag pajesojjeun

18°902°¢ 66'0G€'0Z€ 98°/50'v2E {r1€v8'6) 00 106'€€EE seoiAIeg uonelodsuel | Juspnls - sainyipusdx3 paynquisipun (B0 L
96'961'€ 96961 {v0'€08c) 000002 seljddng uojepodsuel |
2£'6.5'C 98°'998'6€ gL ovv'ey (zg'95€'12) 00°€08'€9 sjuawaaiby julor - (sjuspnig uoneonp3 [ejoads) - s80lAIRS PajoesU0D
y'8¥2'002 ¥'8Z'002 v'209'61 00°9¥9'081 sjuawaalby jutor - (J00YoS pue SWoH ussmieg) - S80IAI8S PIORIJUOD
ov'8LL'e ov'aLL'e ovzeL's 00°9€5'€ Juapnjg 8910y Joj JuawAhed Jo nal uj Py - S8JIAIBS pejoeiu0)
00'892'L 00'992'1 (00°892'1) 00'9€5'€ Juspmis Jaleyd Joj juswied Jo nal u| piy - S8IAI8S PajoRju0D
0008921 00°089'2} 00°204'2 00°€.6'GL sjuepn}g 21|qnd-UoN 104 JuswwAed Jo nalq U| piy - S80IAI8S PRJOBIU0D
S5 LZL'L Sb'z/8'S 00°000'S 00°000'S S80IAleg soueusjulel pue Jedsy ‘Bulues|)
16°€88'GE 16°€88'GE (60°0Z1'Y) 00000V uoyenodsuel | |idnd 10§ seliees
L6°GLLLL 16°GLLLL (€0°289'¢) 00'€08'v1 Sseply [BUOIONIISUJ-UON JO See|es
S8JJAI8S uoljeliodsuel ] juapnlg - sainjipusdx3 peynquysipun
|enjoy o) jeuiq |enjoy 1abpng siajsuel] 18bpng
QoueleA leuiq 1ebpng leuibuo

L10Z ‘0€ aunf pspu3 Jea) [eds|d 8yl Jo4
a|npayog uospedwon Aiejabpng
pung jeisuas

10141813 TOOHOS HLNOWAIM 40 dIHSNMOL
1-0 Nayx3




-0 Hayx3

L102Z ‘0€ aunp papu3 Jes\ |edsid ay] 404
ajnpayoss uosuedwon Aiejabpng
pun4 |eJauan

12141S1a TOOHOS HLNOWAIM 40 dIHSNMOL

€9'25.'6¥5 8L°Cl¥ ese (y9°292'961) (y8'566'LG1) (00°2LL'vY)
1L'GEE'LG) €1°901'L19'v ¥8'698'CLL'Y $8'6¥9'GS1 00022819V
00'810°} 00'S6€'LL o0€lvel (00°0052) 00'€L6'6.L
0¢'00¢C 00€L0C ozelee oz'ioc 002L0¢C
0c'00cC 00€L0C ozelee oz'ioc 00¢ci0C
0c00cC 00€L0'C ocelee oz'ioc 00210¢

LG LLL'9GL €1'869°EVS'v Y9'EPZ 669V ¥9'8v6' 291 00°G62'9€S v
(26'9v9'221) G8'666 9P € 8z'l8l'8lv'e (¢L'6,8'9¢) 00°199'65¥'€

{enjoy 0} jeulq |enjoy 18bpng siajsuel) jebpng

aouepeA leut4 18bpng leuibuo

sainypuadx3y (18pun)ianQ sanuanay jo (kousioyaq) sseax3

SIUNLIANIdX3 TV10L
$|00Y0S J8peyd 0} spund Jo .E_mcs 1
Aepno (endeD fejoL
(pelebpnq-uou) sasea |ejideD Japun painboy sjessy

saJn)ipuadx3 paynquisipun
(peyebpng-uoN) sesea |eyded Japupn palinboy sjessy

S90IAJBS UOIONIISUOY pue uolsinboy saljioed (ejo L

$108(q0 JaW10
S80IAIBS UONONASUOD Pue uoNISINboy sapiiced

juswdinb3g |ej01
sainypuadx3 paynguisipun
uononisu| - sweiboid Jejnbay
juawdinbg
Aepno feynded

asuadx3 juaung |ejol

seinjipusdx3 paINguIsipun [ejoL




—_——
8€'900¢2.0'L $

(05712572€2)
88'//5'60€'}

00°'000 052
L6'EEQ'61
19°006'00€

00'v9z'2ZL
60°v¥C'vS

00'000'SS}
Lz6es'lor $

€925.6YS $ 88°//G60€ L $ Gz/6e09. ¢ (v8'S66°LSL) § 60'€6EZLE $
60'625 100"} 60625 100} 60'625'L00'}
€9'25.'6V5 62'250'80€ (P8°221'1P2) (¥8'666'151) (00°Z1'69)
- {00°09€V¥) (00°09EPY) - {00°09€'v¥)
- (00°09€'vP) (00°09€'P¥) (00°09€'vP)
|enjoy 0} |euiq lenjoy 1ebpng siajsuel] 1ebpng
aoueleA leulq4 yebpng feutbuo

-0 3aiyx3a

L10Z ‘0€ @unp papul JesA [edsid ayl Jo4
ajnpayog uosiredwon Aiejabpng
pung [esauas

10141S1d TO0OHOS HLNOWAIM 40 dIHSNMOL

(dVVO) spun4 jejuswiuianos Jad souejeg pun4

siseg dyvo uo paziubooay JON JuawAied piy ajels Jse
(dWVO) SlusWale}lS SpUn4 [BJUBLULIBAOS) 0} LUONHEI|IOU0ISY

@ouejeg pun4 paubisseun
sainypuadxy sJeaA juanbasqgng 10} peubiseq
saoueIqunoug
@ouejeg pun4 paubissy
1B8 A Jusun)
sainjipuadx3 sJesA jusnbasqgng Joj pajeubiseq
snjding ssaox3
aAI9s8Y adueuUBjUlBIN
aMlasay |eyde)d
aouejeg pund pajousey
uopejnjidessy

0€ aunp ‘aduejeg pund
1 Ainp ‘souejeg pundg

sasn Bupueuld Jay0 pue sainjipuadx3y (18pun) 18AQ
sa0unog Buioueul Jay)Q pue sanusaay Jo (Aoualyaq) sseax3

(sesn) seainog Buioueulq J8yiQ |ejoL

(pejebpng-uou) sasean jeyded
ply uoljeanps jooyosald - anuaAsy je1oeds
(InQ) u| Jaysues Bupesado
(sesn) saainog Bujoueu4 Jayio




- $ - - - $ - $

- 00°09€' vy 00°09€ vv - 00°09€'v¥

- 00°09€ vt 00°09€ vt - 00°09E'v¥

- (00°09¢'vp) (o0'09evt) - (00"09e'vY)

- 8€'685 €92 8€°685 €92 ge’lee ve 00'89¢€'6€C

- 00'v8e'EY 00'¥8E €ty 00898} 0091G'L€

- 00'v8e'eY 00'¥8€E'EY 00898'L 1L 00916'LE

- 8€£'602'022 8€'602'0¢C 8E'€GECL 00'258°202

- 6¥'958'6 6¥'958'6 6¥'9G€'6 00°00S

- 68°25€'6 68'25€'6 68°258'8 00°00S

- 00'929'69 00'929'69 00'8.1'0L 00'8v¥'6S

- 10'602'8 10'602'8 (66°66S'v) 00'608'C1

- 00'GE6'EL 00'GE6'EL 00°GE6'EL

- 66°622'601 66622601 (over'iL) 00°099'021

- 8€'62261C 8€'622612 ge’1ze've 00'800'G61

- 8€'G1G'GS1 8€'GLS'SGL 8€'122 v 00'v6Z'LEl

- 00'yLL'€9 00'viL'e9 - 00'viL'E9

- $ - - - $ - $
|eN}oy 0} [eulq |enjoy yebpng slajsuel] 1ebpng

aouelep jeutd 1abpng feutbiO

¢-0 Nqlux3a

L10Z ‘0€ aunp papu3 Jea, |edsid 8yl 104
s|npsyoss uosuedwon Aieyebpng
pund snuaAay [ejoads

10141S1d TOOHOS HLNOWAIM H0 dIHSNMOL

sainjipuadx3 (Jepun) JeAQ $82iN0S
Buroueul4 Jayy0 pue senuaasy Jo (Aousioyaqg) sseox3

$901n0g Budueul4 18I0 1BI0L
pun4 |eJauss) Woyj Jajsuel] - seaunog Buueuld 18I0
sainjipuadx3 (Japun) J8AQ senuaAay Jo (Aousiyaq) ss8ox3
sainypuadxdy |ejo L

SOJIAIBS UOIONIISUOD Ppuk UoHISINboy sanyie [ejoL

juswdinb3 jeuononusul
:S82IAI8S UOIONASU0D pue uolisinboy saljijioed

se0lAlag Hoddng |ejoL

sjeus)ey pue sayddng
sjiyauag aakojdwg - s82IAI8S |euosiad
$82|AI8S paseydind 18yl
S8DIAIG [BOIUYD8 | |BUOISSJ0ld paseydind
salejes

saojneg Hoddng

uonoNnsu| feyo L

sjo8lqo 18u0
sjeuajey pue salddng
Sa0IAI8S paseyoind 18ylo
S80IAIag [BOIUYDD | [BUOISS8J0.d paseydind
uoponJisuj 10j saueleg 1ayio
slayoea jo seuejes
uofonysu|
S3HNLIANAdX3

sonuaAay [ejo]

$82IN0S |elapad
$821N0S 8le)S
$90.N0S 1207

SANNIAIY




NOTES TO REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Note to RSI

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note A - Explanation of Differences Between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/Inflows of Resources

Actual amounts (Budgetary Basis) revenue from
the Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Difference - Budget to GAAP
Grant accounting Budgetary Basis differs from GAAP
in that encumbrances are recognized as expenditures
and the related revenue is recognized.

Encumbrances
June 30, 2016

June 30, 2017

State Aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP purposes.

State Aid Payment
June 30, 2016

June 30, 2017

Total revenues as reported on the Statements of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Uses/Outflows of Resources

Actual amounts (Budgetary Basis) total outflows from the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Differences - Budget to GAAP
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are recorded in the year the order is placed
for budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are
received for financial reporting purposes

Encumbrances
June 30, 2016

June 30, 2017

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

General
Fund

$ 4,969,518.92

237,146.80
(237,571.50)

$ 4,661,466.13

$ 4,661,466.13

Exhibit C-3

Special

Revenue Fund

$ 219,229.38
(9.458.97)
6,826.50
(6,371.40)

$ 210,225.51

$ 263,589.38
(9,458.97)

$ 254130.41
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
PART IlI




TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of the School District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)
Last Four Fiscal Years

Measurement Date Ending June 30,

2016 2015 2014 2013

School District's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.0031619230%  0.0032524096%  0.0035030938%  0.0038396529%
School District's Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability $ 937,73500 $ 730,100.78 $ 65587497 §$ 733,833.96
School District's Covered Employee Payroll $ 55600160 §$ 556,00451 $ 53865143 $ 467,214.85
District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

as a Percentage of its Covered Employee Payroll 168.66% 131.31% 121.76% 157.07%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total

Pension Liability 40.13% 47.93% 52.08% 48.72%

Note - This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, this presentation will only include information for those years for which
information is available.
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2016 2015 2014 2013
Contractually Required Contribution $ 28,128.00 $ 27,962.00 $ 28,879.00 $ 28,931.00
Contributions in Relation to the Contractually
Required Contribution 28,128.00 27,962.00 28,879.00 28,931.00
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - $ - $ - $ -
School District's Covered Employee Payroll $ 556,001.60 $ 556,004.51 $ 53865143 $ 467,214.85
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll 5.06% 5.03% 5.36% 6.19%

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of School District's Contributions
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)
Last Four Fiscal Years

Measurement Date Ending June 30,

Note - This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, this presentation will only include information for those years for which

information is available.
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TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of School District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)
Last Four Fiscal Years

School District's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability

State's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability
Associated with the School District

School District's Proportionate of the Net Pension Liability

State's Proportionate of the Net Pension Liability
Associated with the School District

School District's Covered Employee Payroll

School District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension
Liability as a Percentage of its Covered Employee Payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total
Pension Liability

2016

Measurement Date Ending June 30,
2015 2014

Exhibit L-3

2013

0.00%

100.00%

0.00% 0.00%

100.00% 100.00%

0.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00% 100.00%

100.00%

11,944,855.00

9,629,640.00 7,739,919.00

7,679,618.00

$ 11,944,855.00

$ 9,629,640.00 $ 7,739,919.00

$ 7,679,618.00

$ 1,170,958.25

0.00%

22.33%

Note - This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement for 10 years.
However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, this presentation will only include information for those years for which

information is available.

$ 1,277,188.85 §$ 1,325565.59
0.00%

28.71%

0.00%

33.64%

$ 1,524,613.58

0.00%

33.76%
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



SCHOOL BASED BUDGET

NOT APPLICABLE



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
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EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies
Other Objects

Total Instruction

Support Services
Personal Services - Employee Benefits
Purchased Educational Services
Other Purchased Services
Travel
Other Objects

Total Support Services

Facilities Acquisition
Instructional Equipment

Total Facilities Acquisition

Total Expenditures

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Preschool Education Aid Expenditures
Preschool - All Programs
Budgetary Basis
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Budget Actual

Exhibit E-2

Variance

$ 61,623.00 $ 61,623.00
13,935.00 13,935.00
500.00 500.00

500.00 500.00

76,558.00 76,558.00

31,516.00 31,516.00

31,516.00 31,516.00

$ 108,074.00 $ 108,074.00

$ -

Total 2016-2017 Preschool Aid Allocation
Add:Budget Transfer from General Fund

Total Funds Available for 2016-2017 Budget

Less: 2016-2017 Budgeted Preschool

Available and Unbudgeted Funds as of June 30, 2017
Add: June 30, 2017 Unexpended Preschool Aid

June 30, 2017 Actual Carryover - Preschool Aid

2016-2017 Preschool Aid Carryover Budgeted in 2017-2018

$ 63,714.00

44,360.00

108,074.00

(108,074.00)
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND




Project Title

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capital Projects Fund
Summary Schedule of Project Expenditures
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Exhibit F-1

Mechanical and Electrical Improvements

Totals

Revised GAAP Unexpended
Budgetary Expenditures to Date Appropriations
Appropriations Prior Current June 30, 2017
711113 $ 1,689,000.00 $ 1,670,052.17 $ $ 18,947.83
$ 18,947.83

$ 1,689,000.00 $ 1,670,052.17 $




TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capital Projects Fund
Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfer from Capital Reserve
Sale of Bonds
Interest Earned
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
Construction Services
Operating Transfers Out - Capital Reserve
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

Exhibit F-2

$ -
-_
N —
_

18,947.83

$

18,947.83
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PROPRIETARY FUND




ENTERPRISE FUND



ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Inventories
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Due to General Fund
Total Current Liabilities

NET POSITION

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Enterprise Funds

Combining Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2017

Exhibit G-1

Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Food Service After School

Fund Care Total
$ 7,268.05 $ 7,082.31 14,350.36
2,804.55 2,804.55
5,5695.23 5,595.23
15,667.83 7,082.31 22,750.14
39,180.54 39,180.54
26,306.00 26,306.00
12,874.54 - 12,874.54
28,542.37 7,082.31 35,624.68
10,117.59 10,117.59
6,750.00 6,750.00
16,867.59 - 16,867.59
12,874.54 12,874.54
(1,199.76) 7,082.31 5,882.55
$ 11,674.78 $ 7,082.31 18,757.09
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Exhibit G-2
TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
Food Service After School
Fund Care Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges For Services
Daily Sales
Reimbursable Programs $ 16,372.66 $ - 16,372.66
Non-Reimbursable Programs 16,298.95 16,298.95
Community Service Activities 17,504.00 17,504.00
Total Operating Revenue 32,671.61 17,504.00 50,175.61
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of Sales 39,147.62 39,147.62
Salaries 35,593.78 14,376.54 49,970.32
Employee Benefits 8,550.39 1,213.46 9,763.85
Cleaning, Repairs and Maintenance
General Supplies 3,464.62 270.42 3,735.04
Management Fee 10,356.68 10,356.68
Depreciation 1,993.00 1,993.00
Other 5,367.76 5,367.76
Total Operating Expenses 104,473.85 15,860.42 120,334.27
Operating Income (Loss) (71,802.24) 1,643.58 (70,158.66)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State Sources
State School Lunch and Breakfast Program 805.48 805.48
Federal Sources
National School Lunch and Breakfast Program 49,556.09 49,556.09
Food Distribution Program 10,067.11 10,067.11
Interest on Investments 26.74 17.88 44.62
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 60,455.42 17.88 60,473.30
Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers (11,346.82) 1,661.46 (9,685.36)
Capital Contributions
Transfers In/(Out)
Change in Net Position (11,346.82) 1,661.46 (9,685.36)
Net Position, July 1 23,021.60 5,420.85 28,442.45
Net Position, June 30 $ 11,674.78 $ 7,082.31 18,757.09
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TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Food Service
Fund

After School
Care

Exhibit G-3

Total

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts From Customers and Other Funds 32,671.61
Payments to Employees (35,593.78)
Payments to Vendors (66,412.52)

$

17,504.00
(14,376.54)
(1,483.88)

50,175.61
(49,970.32)
(67,896.40)

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities (69,334.69)

1,643.58

(67,691.11)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Sources 940.76
Federal Sources 67,818.72
Due to General Fund 6,750.00

940.76
67,818.72
6,750.00

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Noncapital Financing Activities 75,509.48

75,509.48

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Capital Assets

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Capital and Related Financing Activities -

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest on Investments . 26.74 17.88 44.62
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities 26.74 17.88 44 .62
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,201.53 1,661.46 7,862.99
Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 _ 1,066.52 5,420.85 6,487.37
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 $ 7,268.05 $ 7,082.31 $ 14,350.36
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss) $ (71,802.24) $ 1,643.58 $ (70,158.66)
Adjustments to reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
By (Used In) Operating Activities

Depreciation 1,993.00 1,993.00

(Increase) Decrease

Accounts Receivable
Inventories (1,341.11) (1,341.11)
Prepaid Expenses

Increase (Decrease)

Accounts Payable 1,815.66 1,815.66
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities $ (69,33469) $ 1,643.58 $ (67,691.11)




INTERNAL SERVICE FUND



FIDUCIARY FUNDS




ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Payroll Deductions and Withholding
Due to Student Groups

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION:

Held in Trust for
Flexible Benefit Claims

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Exhibit H-1

Fiduciary Funds
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2017
Privite-Purpose
Trust Funds Agency Funds
Flexible Benefits Student Total
Trust Activity Payroll Agency Funds
$ 240.20 $ 12,544.21 $ 2,759.53 $ 15,543.94
240.20 12,544.21 2,759.53 15,5643.94
- 2,759.53 2,759.53
12,544.21 12,544.21
- 12,544.21 2,759.53 15,303.74
240.20 = - 240.20
$ 240.20 $ - $ - $ 240.20
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TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Privite-Purpose Trust Funds

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employee
Total Contributions

Investment Earnings
Interest

Total Investment Earnings
Total Additions
DEDUCTIONS

To General Fund
Total Deductions
Change in Net Position
Net Position, July 1

Net Position, June 30

Exhibit H-2

Flexible-Benefits

Trust Fund

0.60
0.60

0.60

0.60

0.60

240.20

$ 240.20
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Elementary School

Exhibit H-3
TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Student Activity Funds
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
Balance Cash Cash Balance
June 30, 2016 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2017

$ 12,839.93 $ 10,999.23 $ 11,294.95 $

12,544 .21

76




ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Net Payroll .
Payroll Deductions and Withholding

Due to General Fund

Total Liabilities

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Payroll Agency Fund
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Balance Cash Cash
June 30, 2016 Receipts Disbursements

Exhibit H-4

Balance
June 30, 2017

$ 1,906,690.09

$ 1,903,930.56

$ 1,906,690.09

$ 1,903,930.56

$ 1,134,271.97
772,337.27
80.85

$ 1,134,271.97
769,577.74
80.85

$ 1,906,690.09

$ 1,903,930.56

$ 2,759.53
$ 2,759.53

2,759.53
$ 2,759.53




LONG-TERM DEBT
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STATISTICAL SECTION



TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statistical Section
Introduction to the Statistical Section

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
District's financial performance and well being have changed over time.

[ S S R

-1
-2
-3
4
5

—

Revenue Capacity

J-6 These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District's most
J-7 significant local revenue source, the property tax.
J-8
J-9

Debt Capacity
J-10 These schedules present information to help the reader asses the affordability of the
J-1 District's current levels of outstanding debt and the District's ability to issue additional debt
J-12 in the future.
J-13

Demographic and Economic Information

J-14 These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
J-15 understand the environment within which the District's financial activities take place.

Operating Information

J-16 These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
J-17 how the information in the District's financial report relates to the services the District
J-18 provides and the activities it performs.

J-19 :

J-20

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the relevant year.
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FINANCIAL TRENDS
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REVENUE CAPACITY
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TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Source: District Records

School Taxes

Exhibit J-9

Fiscal Year Levied for
Ended June 30, the Fiscal Year
2008 1,673,651.00
2009 1,727,797.00
2010 1,794,732.00
2011 1,975,222.00
2012 1,988,980.00
2013 2,026,580.00
2014 2,064,940.00
2015 2,120,232.00
2016 2,196,296.00
2017 2,231,457.00

Unaudited
Current Tax Percentage of Tax
Collections Levy Collections
1,673,651.00 100.00%
1,727,797.00 100.00%
1,794,732.00 100.00%
1,975,222.00 100.00%
1,988,980.00 100.00%
2,026,580.00 100.00%
2,064,940.00 100.00%
2,120,232.00 100.00%
2,196,296.00 100.00%
2,231,457.00 100.00%
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DEBT CAPACITY
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TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit J-11
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding Unaudited
Source: District Records

Net General Percentage of
Fiscal Year General Bonded Debt Actual Taxable
Ended June 30, Obligation Bonds Deductions Outstanding Value of Property Per Capita

2008 389,252 389,252 0.73% 172
2009 580,972 580,972 0.60% 258
2010 470,283 470,283 0.48% 209
2011 357,000 357,000 0.36% 132
2012 240,986 240,986 0.24% 88
2013 122,036 122,036 0.12% 45
2014 1,689,000 1,689,000 1.72%
2015 1,689,000 1,689,000 1.05%
2016 1,584,000 1,584,000 1.05%
2017 1,514,000 1,514,000 0.93%




TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
. Source: District Records

Net Direct Debt of the School District

Debt Repaid With Property Taxes
Local Municipality

Other Debt
County of Atlantic

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

Debt
Outstandin:
$ 1,514,000.00

667,265.00

$ 160,505,901.00

Estimated
Percentage
Applicable

Exhibit J-12
Unaudited

Estimated Share
of Overlapping
Debt

100.00%

100.00%

$  1,514,000.00

667,265.00

935,749.40

$ 3,117,014.40
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION




TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Exhibit J-14

Demographic and Economic Statistics Unaudited
Source: NJ Department of Labor
Fiscal Year School District Personal Per Capita Unemployment
Ended June 30, Population Income Personal Income Rate

2008 2,263 84,179,074 37,198 3.40%
2009 2,253 85,861,830 38,110 4.20%
2010 2,254 88,144,924 39,106 8.00%
2011 2,714 106,261,242 39,153 8.00%
2012 2,730 107,957,850 39,545 8.30%
2013 2,736 113,100,768 41,338 12.00%
2014 2,742 114,963,834 41,927 9.10%
2015 2,747 114,437,273 41,659 8.80%
2016 2,763 119,737,368 43,336 7.00%
2017 2,788 121,821,660 43,695 7.00%



TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit J-15
Principal Employers Unaudited
Source: NJ Department of Labor

Information Not Available




Operating Information
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TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Insurance Schedule
Source: District Records

Amount of
Company Type of Coverage Coverage

Atlantic and Cape May Counties School
Business Officials Joint insurance Fund

Western Surety Company

Property, Inland Marine and Automobile Physical Damages

Limit of Liability - Per Occurrence

ACCASBOVJIF Self Insured Retention - Per Occurrence

Member District Deductible
Property Valuation

Buildings and Contents

Contractors Equipment

Automobiles

Boiler and Machinery
Limit of Liability
ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention
Member District Deductible

Crime
Limit of Liability
ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention
Member District Deductible

General and Automobile Liability
Limit of Liability
ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention
Member District Deductible

Workers Compensation
Limit of Liability
ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention
Member District Deductible

Educator's Legal Liability
Limit of Liability
ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention
Member District Deductible

Pollution Legal Liability
Limit of Liability
ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention
Member District Deductible - Pollution
Member District Deductible - Mold

Cyber Liability
Limit of Liability
ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention
Member District Deductible

Violent Malicious Acts
Limit of Liability
ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention
Member District Deductible

Surety Bonds
Treasurer

Board Secretary/Business Administrator

$ 175,000,000
250,000

Replacement Cost
Actual Cash Value
Replacement Cost

125,000,000
None

500,000
250,000

20,000,000
250,000

Statutory
250,000

20,000,000
175,000

3,000,000
None

1,000,000
None

1,000,000
None

200,000
5,000

Exhibit J-20
Unaudited

Deductible

500

1,000

500

25,000
100,000

25,000

15,000
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PREZIOSI-NICHOLSON

& ASSOCIATES PA

Certified Public Accountants

EXHIBIT K-1

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Township of Weymouth School District
County of Atlantic

Dorothy, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, and in compliance with audit requirements as prescribed by
the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Township of Weymouth School District, in the County of Atlantic, State of New Jersey, as of
and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Township of Weymouth School District's basic financial statements and have issued
our report thereon dated November 17, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Township of Weymouth School District's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,

yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying

schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be a significant deficiency as item 2017-01.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Township of Weymouth School District's
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the
Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education,
State of New Jersey, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities, in considering the
District's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other

purpose.

PREZIOSI - NICHOLSON & ASSOCIATES
Certified Public Accountants

/AO\Wb MKQQJ‘EV

James M. Preziosi
Certified Public Accountant
Public School Accountant No. CS 01141

November 17, 2017
Millvilie, NJ
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Certified Public Accountants

EXHIBIT K-2

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON
THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REQUIRED BY UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE
REQUIREMENTS, COST PRINCIPLES, AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR FEDERAL
AWARDS (UNIFORM GUIDANCE) AND NEW JERSEY OMB’S CIRCULAR 15-08

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Township of Weymouth School District
County of Atlantic

Dorothy, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

We have audited the Township of Weymouth School District's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the New Jersey State Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on the District's major state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The District's
major state programs aré identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results section of the accompanying

" Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its state programs

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District's major federal and state
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey; Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations part 200,
uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance) and NJ OMB15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State
Aid. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and State of New Jersey OMB’s Circular 15-08, require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effecton a major federal and
state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the District’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major State Program

In our opinion, the Township of Weymouth School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
state programs for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement
and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2017-2. Our
opinion on each major state program is not modified with respect to these matters.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred above. In planning and performing our audit,
we considered the District's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federal and state program to determine the auditing procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purposes of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance and State of New Jersey
OMB's Circular 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal
control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state prograim will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program that is less severe that a material weakness in internal control over

compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in the internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies

in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Uniform
Guidance and State of New Jersey OMB's Circulars 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other

purpose.

107



Report on Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required and State Financial Assistance
Required by Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 15-08

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund of the Township of Weymouth School District as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2017, and have issued our report thereon dated November 17, 2017, which contained an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of Federal
Awards and State Financial Assistance are presented for the purposes of additional analysis as required by
Uniform Guidance and NJ OMB'’s Circular 15-08 and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was not derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and the other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally

accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal awards and
state financial assistance is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a

whole.

PREZIOSI -NICHOLSON & ASSOCIATES

Certified Public Acc nts
—\awes M =

James M. Preziosi
Certified Public Accountant
Public School Accountant No. CS 01141

November 17, 2017
Millville, NJ
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

EXHIBIT K-5

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Schedules of Awards and Financial Assistance
June 30, 2017

GENERAL

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial
Assistance include federal awards and state award activity of the Township of Weymouth
School District. The District is defined in Note 1 to the District's basic financial statements.
All federal awards and state financial assistance received directly from federal and state
agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed through other
government agencies is included on the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and
state financial assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial
Assistance are presented using the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of
programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of
accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note 1 to the District’s financial
statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Award, therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation
of, the basic financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP
basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedules are presented for the general fund and
special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain
revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas
for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when
expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis
with the exception of the revenue recognition of one or more deferred June state aid
payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2.
For GAAP purposes, payments are not recognized until the subsequent budget year due to
the state deferral and recording of the one or more June state aid payments in the
subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on
the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and
also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special
revenue fund also recognizes the last state aid payment in the current budget year, consistent
with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2.

See Exhibit C-3, Notes to Required Supplementary Information, for a reconciliation of the
budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special
revenue funds.
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EXHIBIT K-5

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Schedules of Awards and Financial Assistance

June 30, 2017
NOTE 3 RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Awards and financial assistance revenues aré reported in the basic financial statements as
follows:
Federal State Total
General Fund $ $ 2,726,825.63 $ 2,726,825.63
Special Revenue Fund 146,056.41 64,169.10 210,225.51
Debt Service Fund 42,750.00 42,750.00
Enterprise Fund 59.623.20 805.48 60,428.68
Total GAAP 205,679.61 2,834,550.21 3,040,229.82
Budgetary Adjustment
State Aid Payment
Current Year 243,942.90 243,942.90
Prior Year ( 243973.30) ( 243,973.30)
Encumbrances
Current Year 9,458.97 9,458.97
Prior Year

Total Budgetary $ 215138.58 $ 283451981 9 3,049,658.39

NOTE 4 RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the
related federal and state financial reports.

NOTE 5 OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the U.S.D.A. Commodities Program represents
current year value received and current year distributions respectively. The amount reported
as TPAF Pension Contributions represents the amount paid by the state on behalf of the
District for the year ended June 30, 2017. TPAF Social Security Contributions represents the
amount reimbursed by the state for the employer's share of social security contributions for
TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2017.

NOTE 6 MAJOR PROGRAMS

Major programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results section of the Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs.
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Exhibit K-6

TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

PART 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

Financial Statements

A Type of auditors' report issued:
Unmodified
B. Internal control over financial reporting:

1. Material weakness(es) identified?
No

2. Were significant deficiencies identified that were not considered to be material weakness(es)?

Yes

C. Noncompliance material to general purpose financial statements noted?
No

Federal Awards Section

This Section Does Not Apply

State Financial Assistance

A Dollar threshold used to determine Type A and Type B programs.
$750,000.00

B. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
Yes

C. Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs.
Unmodified

D. Internal control over major programs.

1. Material weakness(es) identified?
No

2. Were significant deficiencies identified that were not considered to be material weakness(es)?

Yes
E. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance
or New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08 ?
Yes
F. ldentification of major programs.
GMIS Number(s) Program Type Name of State Program

State Aid Public

495-034-5120-078 A Equalization Aid
495-034-5120-089 B Special Education Categorical Aid
495-034-5120-084 B Security Aid
495-035-5120-085 B Adjustment Aid
495-034-5120-097 B Per Pupil Growth Aid
495-034-5120-098 B PARCC Readiness Aid
495-034-5120-101 -B Professional Learning Community Aid
495-034-5120-014 B Transportation Aid




Exhibit K-6
TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

PART 2 - SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

This section identifies significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to the financial
statements that are required in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and with the audit and with audit requirements
as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Finding No. 2017-1
Criteria

N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-16.2(c)(3) requires public school district's to use the modified accrual or accrual basis of accounting as appropriate
in measuring financial position and operating results in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).

Condition

One exception was noted based on our review of outstanding purchase orders as to the proper classification of reserve for
encumbrance and accounts payable.

Questioned Cost
Less than $25,000.

Effect
Noncompliance with prescribed accounting principles.

Cause
The Business Office inadvertently overlooked the recording of purchase orders as accounts payable during the year end close.

Recommendation

Purchase orders should be reviewed for proper classification as accounts payable or reserve for encumbrance based upon
the receipt of goods or the time in which services have been rendered.

View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action
The responsible officials agree with the finding and will address the matter as part of their corrective action.
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Exhibit K-6
TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

PART 3 - SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

This section identifies significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance including questioned
costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs as required by US Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB

Circular 15-08.

FEDERAL AWARDS

This Section Does Not Apply

STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Finding No. 2017-2

State Aid - Public

Equalization Aid

Special Education Categorical Aid
Security Aid

Adjustment Aid

Per Pupil Growth Aid

PARCC Readiness Aid

Professional Learning Community Aid
Transportation Aid

Criteria
N.J.A.C. BA:23A-16.2(f) requires public school district's to utilize "The Uniform Minimum Chart of Accounts for New Jersey Public
Schools, 2008 Edition" to provide proper classification of expenditures.

Condition

The District misclassified the following expenditures:
« Advertising as Utilities
o Fuel as Supplies
« Supplies as Registration Fees
Questioned Cost

Less than $25,000.

Effect
The District did not comply with principles and directives for accounting and reporting.

Cause

The Business Office incorrectly classified expenditures.

Recommendation

The District should reference "The Uniform Minimum Chart of Accounts for New Jersey Public Schools, 2008
Edition" for proper classifications required to be in compliance with NJAC 6A:23A-16.2(f).

View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

The responsible officials agree with the finding and will address the matter as part of their corrective action.

115




TOWNSHIP OF WEYMOUTH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Summary Schedule of Prior-Year Findings and
Questioned Costs as Prepared by Management

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

This section identifies the status of prior year findings related to the financial statements of Federal Awards and State Financial

Assistance that are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, US OMB Uniform Guidance
State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Finding No. 2016-1

Condition

The District tranferred an amount that on a cumulative basis exceeded ten percent (10%) of the total amount included in
the original budget without Executive County Superintendent Approval.

Status of Prior Year Finding

Corrective action taken.

Exhibit K-7
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